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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1400-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.eov

August 20, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Granite United Way (VC# 160015), Concord, New Hampshire,
to continue providing substance use disorder information and call referral sen/ices through the
use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $476,000 from $1,347,156 to $1,823,156 and extending the completion date from
September 29, 2021 to September 29, 2022, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 31. 2018, item
#17, amended on May 6, 2020, item #36, and most recently amended on March 24, 2021, Item
#17.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-020510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $186,262 $0 $186,262

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057047 $121,600 $0 $121,600

TTie Deparlmen-l of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Sen/ices

92057048 $317,333 $0 $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057048

$158,666 $0 $158,666

2022 074-500585:

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Rel
92057048

$0 $357,000 $357,000

2023 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and
Rel

92057048

$0 $119,000 $119,000

Total $1,347,156 $476,000 $1,823,156

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH, a telephonic service that provides

i  eiiPvn/N^ cAn/i^ac anH rAfomilc fnrconfidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

Approximately 5,400 individuals will be served from September 30, 2021 through
September 29, 2022.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to the Doorways and other current resources in their community. During aflerhours
and on weekends, callers are directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with Doorways
services.

From January 1, 2021 through July 31. 2021, 2-1-1 NH received 62,004 calls, of which
3,932 calls were related to substance use disorder. The 3,932 calls related to substance use
disorder resulted in 3.815 referrals directly to the Doorways, including 1,111 direct transfers to an
on-call clinician associated with the Doorways.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day, seven (7) days per week. Call center services include providing assistance to clients
with locating transportation, emergency shelter, and information relative to respite shelter
vouchers.

The Contractor continues to ensure individuals calling for reasons related to substance
use disorder are able to speak to a 2-1-1 NH representative during the initial call. Further, callers
remain on the line while the 2-1-1 NH representative connects the individual to a Doorway during
business hours, or ari on-call Doorways clinician after hours.

The Department will continue developing performance measures, utilizing baseline data
collected on the percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call; the average
amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds; the percentage of callers
who hang up before reaching an agent; and the average amount of time for the call to be
answered.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the one (1) year available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders will not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information and connections to services, which could result In delays In accessing r>eeded care
and may result in deaths, overdoses and relapses.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI083326

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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A

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

August 30, 2021

Lori A. Shibinelle, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinette:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existing contract with Granite United Way of, Concord,
NH as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-053C.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-1-1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for individuals and their families statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is $476,000, increasing the current contract from
$1,347,15(3 to $1,823,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2022,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2021. This amendment shall become

, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 29, 2022.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. ^

.  Sincerely,

Lk yM"
Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DolT#2015-053C

RID: N/A

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite' United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on October 31, 2018, (Item #17), as amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #36), subsequently amended March
24, 2021, (Item #17), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,823,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Section 3, State Opioid Response (SCR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 3.3 to read:

3.3 Reserved

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SCR)
Grant Standards, Paragraph 3.5.4, to read:

3.5.4. The Contractor shall ensure that SCR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

3.5.4.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (DUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who, or organization that, proyides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, by adding Subsection 3.6., to read:

3.6. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to Implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes:

3.6.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

3.6.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

3.6.2. Other key data as requested by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., to
read:

^  DS

1. This agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response|Gj[?4'^t, as

2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor Initiaij

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 5 Dale
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awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685. and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, and

as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

7. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3., to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment,#3 SOR II Budget.

8. • Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5., to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department
in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs\

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an
allowable expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be
used for light snacks, not to exceed three dollars

ft
2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date
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($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based
on third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

9. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Ft
2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

8/31/2021

Date

—DocuSlgn«d by:

Namexatja Fox
Title:

Di rector

8/25/2021

Date

Granite United Way

G—DocuSignvd by:
Pairilk tWh
—475S37AlieDH5F..

Name: Patrick Tufts
Title: „ . . ^

President

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Granite United Way

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSljntd by:

8/31/2021

05CAfl2ME32C4AE..,

cathertny plnos
Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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ExhU B4 Amcndnwnl n B«id9«t SORI

Nffw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Instnictloris: 'Fill out the Dire^ndiri^ columns only for Contractor Share (if applicable) and Funded by OHHS. Everythlno ialse will automatically populate. T

Contractor Him*: Gianto UtSlod Way

PioioclTlla: Cal Cantor (211)

Budgot Parlotl: SFY22 n/30/21-0«00f22

Fur>da<t by OHHS contract ahara

LiiM Sam

_Tc*al_Pr^^^T^r Contractor Share I Uateti

1. Total SaaayWaooa

2. Emotovaa Barrafita tojoo.oo

3. Conaiaart* 1.100.00

4, Eqtigmara:

_Ra£oir_art_MaelBneri^
Puelaaa/Papradatlon ;.soo.oo

Pharmacy

t. Ocogancy

B. C<jrar< Ejpanaaa

Talaprona

Poaaaa

Subaokitlora

AtXtwH Laoal

BoaW Eipamaa

B. Softwera

10. MarltatinoComrturieationa

l_t;_StBjl_E*gtiooart^iiirg^
12. S>Oeof«Taet>/A4ireamer«»

13. Olhar (aoaenkdataili tnartlaioiyl:

TstIooTo^
aidfeaet Aa A Parcani e( DiracI

Crarila Unttad Way
$S-201»«OAS-O4<>LLC-0l-A03

EjMbC B-a Budgal Amandmatt «3 SOR M
Paga 1 el 1

Cortractor batiai*
Or



OwwUfi* t>inllf« B:OVTaM4ltC-<M»«F{»<7F31lcacON

ExhU B-7 Araw«*Twnl *3 SOR I BwtfgM

Now Hsmpshlr* Department of Health and Human Services

COMPI.ETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Instructions: Fill out the Direct/Indirect columns only for Contractor Share (If applicable) and Funded by DHHS. Everything else wilt automatically populate.

Centraetor Nann: Cmia> UnaadWcjr

PrafactTUa: CalCw>tar(21l)

Budgal Paried: SFY23 07m/2e234a/29/2022

Total Prooram Ceal Ccntractor Share 1 Match Funtlad bv OHHS contract share
Litw lam Dlact Ifdaact Total Oiraci Mdaact Total ' Daaet Mdiracl Total

t. TeialSaiaryrw^aa $  71479.M S 7,187,97 s 79,087,68 S $  71479,69 s 7.187,97 S 70,067,86
2. Emobvaa Banaiils t  ■ 20.011.13 t 2.001.81 5 22.019.94 S $  20418.11 s 2.001,81 s 22.019,94

3. Cociaularts S  330 00 i 33,00 S 383,00 s S  • 330,00 8 33 CO 8 36300

4. EquomanL t 5 $ 8 S

Rartai t 1 s s 8

RacaP and Maireananca $  33.00 i 3,30 S 36,30 % i  33.00 8 330 8 36,30

P>rctaaa<DuiMaclat>an $  (2S.00 s 82,50 S 907,50 i s i ' 825,00 8 8240 8 007.50

S. S«plas: ( i s $ 8 .

EdueaUenal s t t s 8 8

1^ i * t s $ 8
Pharmacy % t t S 8

Medical % t t s S 8
Oftiea i  6C0.00 % 68,00 % 726,00 i 1 S  660,00 S 66,00 8 726 00

S. TravO i . 660.00 s 68,00 i 726,00 s S  660.00 $ 66,00 8 726 OO
7. Oce>Bary;Y i  600.00 s 68,00 s 726,00 s s i  660.00 8 66,00 8 726 00

8. Ctrran E;oaraaa s 5 . 5 s S . 8
Talaphena $  s.soaoo 090.00 S 10.890 00 $ s 5  940000 8 990,00 8 10.800 00

Peaiaoe t s . $ s 8 . 8
SubaciWioha t - s . $ 8 . 8
AuM and Legal S  <9S.OO s 49,50 5 544,50 S $  - 495.00 i 49,50 8 544,50

Irwvarva ( i . $ s $ . 8
Boaal Eivarsaa s s . 5 8 . 8

9. Seftmera $  9M.00 i 99,00 s 1.089.00 5 5  990.00 8 99,00 8 1.069.00

10. MarfeatmoiCefflnudeatiena $  - ■ C2S.OO i 82.50 i 907.50 s 5 5  825.00 8 82.50 8 007,50

11. StallEduabenand TraMcq $  (26.00 t 82.50 5 907.50 S i 5  82SC0 8 82.50 8 00740

12. Steeorlracta/Aoreemarti i  ' . . -.81,00 i 8.10 s 89,10 s s 5  81.00 t 8,10 8 89 10
13. OtharlatndflcdaUalaiTacyjaaory): » $ s s % 8

% i s $ 8
-1 $ s %  ■ s S 8

i i s i i i
TOTAL }  IOt.U2.*2 i ioAia.18 s . 119.000.90 s i 5  108.18142 1 10418.18 i 119400.00

Maaet Aa A Paream el DIraei

GnrBa UrtMd Way

201940A$-040^UC41-A03

Edt&a e-7 AfnoMmM *3 SOR il Budgai
P^ 1 en

{n
Cortraeioc lniUafc_

S/2J/202I

Data
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccretar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certifS' that GRANITE UNITED WAY is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Marcli 30, 1927. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's olTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 65650

Certificate Number: 0005363034

Ba.

<5^

<1:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th dav of MavA.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Joseph Purington, hereby certify that;

llama duly elected Chair of Granite United Way.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
September 24. 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patrick Tufts, President & CEO, is duly authorized on behalf of Granite United Way to enter into
contracts or agreements with the Stale of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 8/23/2021

J.of Elected',Offic(
Name: Joseph Purington'
Title: Chair
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certificate of liability insurance
DATE (HM/OO/rVYY)

5/7/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement{8).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY ;^ENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

NW4F*^' Elizabeth Prindiville
(603)224-2562 •

ADDRESS- 6p^in<l^ville6rowleyagency. com
INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

iNSURERA: Hanover Ins - Bedford

INSURED

Granite United Way

22 Concord Street

Floor 2

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER a :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:21-22 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

JAODLISUBRI POLICY EFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE IWSD WVO POLICY NUMBER (MM/DOnnrY>T POLICY EXP

(MMIOO^YYYY^ LIMITS
INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE nn OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

bAhUSE TO RENVfeD
PREMISES <Ea occurreftcal

2KV90033T108 1/1/202X 1/1/2022 MED EXP (Any ont pwion)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

PiefMlonll LiiMlly

COMBJNEO SINGLE LIMIT
<Ea acddentV

1,000,000

100,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

eHV»0033710e 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per seddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPef itcddenil

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

AGGREGATE 1,000,000

RETENTION S UHV9003210-09 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

oth

er

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVe

OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendetory In NH)
If yet, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

H

3A Stetee: NH, VT
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Granite United Way

MISSION STATEMENT

Granite United Way's mission is to improve the quality of people's lives by bringing together the caring
power of communities.
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Certified Puulic Accountants & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite United 'Way, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in
net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the 15-month period then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for tlie preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility' is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of tlie United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Page 1
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Grarute United Way as of June 30,2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the 15-month period then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

•We draw attention to Note 16 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty related to the
COVID-19 panderrvic and impact on the Granite United Way's business. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

OtherMatters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to .the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19,
2020 on our consideration of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatioiis, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal conti'ol over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 19, 2020

9-

Page 2
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Without With

Donor/Time Donor/Time

Restrictions Restrictions Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash S  161,136 S  1,044,167 S 1,205,303

Prepaid and reimbursable expenses 30,021 - 30,021

Investments 436,473 - 436,473

Accounts and rent receivable 28,732 - 28,732

Contributions and grants receivable, net
of allowance for uncollectible contributions

3499,872 - 2,519,281 2,519,281

Total current assets 656,362 3,563,448 4,219,810

OTHER ASSETS

Property and equipment, net 1,182,068 - 1,182,068

Investments - endowment 11,545 219,554 231,099

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - 1,681,721 1,681,721

Total other assets 1,193,613 1,901,275 3,094,888

Total assets $  1,849,975 $  5,464,723' s 7,314,698

LLABILTTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABIUTIES

Current maturities of long-term notes payable $  13,639 S s 13,639

Donor-designations payable 403,578 473,653 877,231

Accounts payable 18,980 - 18,980

Accrued expenses 250,392 - 250392

Funds held for others 7,205 -
7,205

Current maturities of the Paycheck
Protection Program loan 341,904 -

341,904

Total current liabilities 1,035,698 473,653 1309351

LONG-TERM LIABIUTIES

Notes payable, less current maturities 186,436 - 186,436

Paycheck Protection Program loan, less

current maturities 430,596 - 430,596

Total long-terrti liabilities 617,032 -
617,032

Total liabilities 1,652,730 473,653 2,126383

COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS:

Without donor/ time restrictions 197,245 - 197,245

With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9) - 4,991,070 4,991,070

Total net assets 197,245 4,991,070 5,188315

Total liabilities and net assets $  1,849,975 $  5,464,723 $ 7,314,698

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 3
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

15-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020

Without

Donor/Time

. Restrictions

With

Donor/Time

Restrictions Total

Support and revenues:
Campaign revenue:

Total contributions pledged

Less donor designations

Less provision for uncollectible pledges
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year

$  - J

92,189

E  7,285,635 $

(1,856,774)

(294,689)

7,285,635

(1,856,774)

(294,689)

92,189

Net campaign revenue

Support:

Grant revenue

Sponsors and other contributions

In-kind contributions

92,189

43,119

5,134,172

2,024,091

1,870,050

5,226361

2,024,091

1,870,050

43,119

Total support 135,308 9,028,313 9,163,621

Other revenue:

Rental income

Administrative fees

Miscellaneous income

104,664

104,423

5,634

-

104,664

104,423

5,634

Total support and revenues 350,029 9,028313 9,378342

Net assets released from restrictions:

For satisfaction of time restrictions

For satisfaction of program, restrictions
5,096357

4,103,229

(5,096,357)

(4,103,229)
-

9,549,615 (171,273) 9,378,342

Expenses:
Program services

Support services:

Management and general

Fundraising

6,524,714

944,017

1,216,880

-

6,524,714

944,017

1,216,880

Total expenses 8,685,611 - 8,685,611

Increase (decrease) in net assets

before non-operating activities 864,004 (171,273) 692,731

Non-operating activities:

Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees of $15,090

Realized and unrealized gains on investments

Investment income, net

4,285

100,179

(44,486)

8,033

7,095

(44,486)

12318

107,274

Total non-operating activities 104,464 (29358) 75,106

Net increase (decrease) in net assets 968,468 (200,631) 767,837

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (771,223) 5,191,701 4,420,478

Net. assets, end of year $  197,245 !B  4,991,070 $ 5,188,315

$ee Notes to Financial Statements. Page 4
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

15-Month Period Ended June 30,2020

United >Vay

Worldwide Supplies,

Salaries, Technology dues and - Cortferences, office

employee and other Campaign, Professional travel cxprenses. Depreciation
Grants and benefits telephone dues and communications services and and staff insurance. and

awards and taxes • Occupancy expeirses subscriptions and printing subcontractors development and other amortization Total

Program services:
Community impact grants S 146,462 S 294,208 S - S S 5  - $ - $ • S - $ • $ 442,670
Public hlealth Network - 608.444 11.704 194 . 1,646 535378 21309 111,283 . 1389,758
211 Net*' Hampshire • 721,249 - 131312 7322 5309 3300 5342 72.774 - 948,408
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance - 158,286 . . - - 30,795 . 9.650 . 198,731
VVhole Village Family Resource Center - 180,153 68,273 15300 . 38,153 1,047 32382 39371 375,479
Work United Program

• 196.675 - -  - . 19314 - - 215389
CO VID-19 Relief Fund 535,558 - - .  - - . • 5300 . 541358
Leader in Me 172,858 8,476 - . • . - - - 181334
Other program services 55,602 1.070,720 135321 101,671 90.111 39,691 503,938 39,641 264.181 30.211 2331,087

Total program services 912,480 3ZJ8,211 215,298 249377 97333 47.146 1,111,664 86353 496.070 70,082 6324.714

Supporting Ser^'ices:
Management and general • 772,054 3Z263 24340 21,484 - 49,105 8324 29.418 6,929 944,017
Fundraising

- 1,006329 42,053 31396 28.004 49.049 2,771 11,111 36.935 9,032 1316380
Total sttpporting services

-

1,778383 74316 55336 49388 49,049 51376 19335 66353 15,%1 2.160397

Totalfimctianal expertses S 912,480 5 5316394 $ 289,614 S 305,113 S  147,123 S  96,195 $ 1363340 $ 106,488 $ 562,423 S 86,043 $ 8385,611

See Noles to Finmdnl Stalgjnents. PogtS



DocuSign Envelope ID: 08FF2B56-61BC-4D40-9FD0.67F261C6CD9B

GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

15-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES

Cash received from donors

Cash received from grantors
Administrative fees

Other cash received

Cash received from trusts

Designations paid

Net cash paid for funds held for others

Cash paid to agencies

Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cosh provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the Payroll Protection Program loan
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

9,769,549

2,182,609

18,061

91,548

73,555

(2,235,961)

(1,850)

(1,550,638)

(8,361,082)

(14,209)

(19,987)

63,422

43,435

772,500

(15,861)

756,639

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

785,865

419,438

1,205,303

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
Interest expense 18,899

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 6
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way is the result of six United Ways merging together to aeate a single, efficient
organization that covers more than 80% of New Hampshire and Windsor County, Vermont. Granite United
Way improve lives by mobilizing the caring power of their communities. More than fundraisers. Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volimteer leadership to invest
donor doUars to help the community leam, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives.
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way's operating expenses. Donors
may designate their pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amounts
pledged to other United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as
designations expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of financial position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way invest in the community through three different vehicles:

June 30, 2020
Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 148,462
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies , 1,856,774
Granite United Way Program services 6,376,252

Total $ 8,381,48?"

The Board of Directors approved Community Impact Grant Awards amormting to $1,100,000 for each of the
years ended June 30,2021 and 2022.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Change in fiscal year: During 2020, the United Way changed its fiscal year from March 31 to Jime 30. Due
to the change, the United Way is reporting for the 15-month period ending June 30,2020.

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Granite United Way (the "United Way") have been
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The significant accounting policies followed are
described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

. Page 7
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2020.

Net assets: The United Way reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.
Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets without donor/ time restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use

at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From time to time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific
purposes which makes them unavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amount to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted endowment) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

The United Way has board designated net assets of $11,545 for endowment at June 30,2020.

Net assets with donor/time reshictioiis: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is

limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if diey are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and clianges in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restrictions include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $294,689 for the campaign period ended June
30,2020. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at 4.5% of the total pledges for the 15-month
period ended June 30,2020.

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompan^dng statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

Page 8
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributions: The United Way recognizes contributions received and made, including unconditional
promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions received are reported as either
revenues without donor restrictions or revenues with donor restrictions. Contributions with donor

restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the by the donor in the same year as the
contribution is'received are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to be met
before the contribution is made are not recorded until the conditions are met. There were no conditional

promises to give as of June 30, 2020.

Donated goods and services: Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to be purchased if they had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. Various types of in-kind support, including services,
call center space, gift certificates, materials and other items, amounting to $43,119 have been reflected at
fair value in the financial statements for the 15-mondi period ended June 30,2020.

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United Way's
prograrh services; however, the value of this contributed time is riot reflected in:the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Functional allocation of expenses: The statement of functional expenses present expenses by function and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of time and effort.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The Uruted Way capitalizes additions of property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.

Depreciation of propert)' and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years

Building and building improvements 5-31V2
Leasehold improvements 15
Furniture and equipment... 3-10

Operating measure: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The measure of operations includes all revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way's programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictions to support operating activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources
outside of those program and services and are comprised of investment return, the changes in fair value of
the beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositions of assets.

Page 9
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially aU of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Way's donor base. As a result, at June 30, 2020, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable.

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2020, there was approximately $932,000
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way's tax positions and concluded the United Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2017.

Change in accounting principle: In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-
Overall: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. This standard is intended to
improve recognition, measurement, presentation,.and disclosure of financial iiistruments. The Organization
adopted ASU 2016-01 on April 1, 2019. The adoption of ASU 2016-01 did not have a significant impact on the
Organization's financial statements.

In Jime 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Not-pr-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and tlie
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. This standard provides guidance for
evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or exchange transactions and
clarifies the criteria for evaluating whether contributions are unconditional or conditional. The Orgaiiization
adopted ASU 2018-08 on April 1,2019. The adoption of ASU 2018-08 did not have a significant impact on the
Organization's financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2014, the FASB issued. Revenue from Contracts with Customers
■ (ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred
to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the United Way expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. In June 2020, the FASB deferred the effective date of this standard for
one year for certain entities that have not yet issued their financial statements. This standard will be
effective for the United Way for the year ended June 30, 2021. Management is currently evaluating the
impact this will have on its financial statements.

Page 30
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In February 2016, the FASB issued. Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU 2016-02, at the
commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the discounted
pa)Tnents due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. Lessees (for capital
and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements.
The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired
before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective transition
approach. In June 2020, the FASB deferred the effective date for this standard for one year, this standard
will be effective for the United Way for the year ended June 30, 2023, with early adoption permitted.
Management is currently evaluating the impact this wUl have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

•  Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or sirhilar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or Liabilities.

•  Level 3 - inputs are genially unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use m pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at Jtme 30,2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 46,212 $ 7,214 $

Mutual funds:

Domestic equity 72,192 -

Fixed income 273,459 -

Fixed income funds 153,081 6,797

Municipal bonds - 5,089

Corporate bonds - 103,804

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - 1,681,721

Total $ 544,944 $ • 122,904 $ 1,681,721
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Beneficial interest in

assets held by others

Balance, March 33,2039 $ 1,726,207

Total unrealized losses, net of fees, included in changes in
net assets with donor restrictions (44,486)

Balance, June 30,2020 $ 1,681,721

Amount of unrealized losses, net of fees, attributable to change in unrealized
losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date included in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets $ (44,486)

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future' distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust's assets at June 30,2020.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Way's
significant financial instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at June 30, ^ 2020
Land, buildings and building improvements $ 1,425,766
Leasehold improvements 5,061
Furniture and equipment 344,369

Total property and equipment 1,775,196
Less accumulated depreciation (593,128)

Total property and equipment, net $ 1,182,068

Notes. Endowment Tunds Held by Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of each fund per year.
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The estimated value of the future distributions from the funds is included in these finandal statements as

required by FASB ASC 958-605, however, all property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $69,111 from the agency endowed funds during the 15-month period ended June
30,2020.

Designated fimds; The Uruted Way is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the fund per
year.

These funds are not included in these financial statements, since although all property in these funds was
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the
United Way, The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $4,444 from the designated funds during the 15-month period ended June 30, 2020.
The market value of these fund's assets amoimted to approximately $108,000 at June 30,2020.

Note 6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, ^ ^ 2020
Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year

Federal Home Loan Classic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (3.34% at
June 30, 2020). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. Coliateralized by
the Umted Way's building located in Plymouth, NR. $ 200,075

Less portion payable within one year 13,639
Total long-term debt $ 186,436

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at June 30,2020 were as follows:
Year Ending Tune 30,

2021 $ 13,639

2022 14,311

2023 15,016

2024 15,756

2025 16,532

Thereafter 124,821

Total $ 200,075

The mortgage note contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which is tested annually based on
the year-end financial statements.
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The United Way has a revolving line-of-credit with Citizen's Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of-credit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (3.5% as of June 30, 2020) and is secured by all
assets of the United Way. At June 30, 2020, there were no amounts outstanding on this line-of-credit
agreernent.

See Note 16 for details about the Payroll Protection loan.

Note?. Funds Held for Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

June 30, ^ 2020
Work United Loan Default Program $ 4,092
Concord Multicultural Festival 1,728

Get Moving Manchester 1,140
Better Together Lakes Region 245

Total $ 7,205

Notes. Endowment Funds

The Ur\ited Way's endowment consists of four individual funds established for youth programs. Whole
Village Resource Center, and general operating support. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Latu: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thus, classifies amounts in its dorior-restricted
endowment funds as net assets widn donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted until the

Board of Directors appropriates such amounts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
purpose restrictions that must be met before redassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amount contributed to an endowment fund unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument. The United Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from imderwater funds in
accordance with the prudent measures required under the law. Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA,
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the United Way considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the
organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible
effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from' income and the appreciation of
investments, (6) other resources of the organization, and (7) d\e investment policies of the United Way.

Undenuater Endowment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-

restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration. The United Way did not have any funds with deficiencies of diis
nature as of June 30, 2020.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment policies,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks to"^
achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Investment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations between asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.'

Spending Poliq/: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
diey strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign's income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30,2020 is as follows:

Board-designated endowment

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor
Accumulated investment gains

Total funds

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  11,545 $ - $

Total

11,545

142,652

76,902

142,652

76,902

11,545 $ 219354 $ 231,099

Changes in the endowment net assets as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Endowment net assets, March 31,2019

Investment return, net

Endowment net assets, June 30,2020

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  10,750 $ 204,426 $

795 15,128

Total

215,176

15,923

$ 11345 $ 219354 $ 231,099
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Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets udth donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

June 30, ; 2020
Subject to expenditure for specified time period:
Contributions receivable related to campaigns $ 2,391,152
Designations payable to other agencies and United Ways (473,653)

1,917,499

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
COVID-19 Relief Fund 351,111

Public Health Network services 310,875

Leader in Me 167,160

Literacy Program 153,486
Manchester Proud 135,554

Work United 39,110

Other programs 15,000

1,172,296

Endowments subject to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (original amounts of
$142,652), which once appropriated,
is expendable to support:

Whole Village Resource Center 106,343
General Operations 86,752
Youth Programs 26,459

~  219,554"
Beneficial interest in assets held by others:
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation 1,681,721

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 4,991,070
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Note 10. Net Assets Released from Donor Restrictions

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by Incurring expenses satisf)'ing the restricted purposes or
by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors. The net assets released from
restrictions are as follows:

June 30, ^ 2020
Purpose restrictions accomplished:
Public Health Network services $ 1,355,482

211 New Hampshire 874,453
COVID-19 Relief Fund 540,237

Manchester Proud 492,021

Other program services 280,983
Work United 215,889

Leader in Me 172,858

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 171,306

4,103,229

5,096,357

$ 9,199,586

Time restrictions expired

Total net assets released from donor restrictions

Note 11. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way's financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for
general expenditure are as foUows:

June 30, 2020

Cash $ 1,205,303

Investments 667,572

Conb'ibutions receivable, net 2,519,281

Beneficial interest in trust 1,681,721

Accounts and rent receivable 28,732

Total financial assets 6,102,609

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions (135,554)
Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor restrictions (219,554)
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation ' (1,681,721)

Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure xoithin one year (2,036,829)

Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment (11,545)

Total financial assets available to management
for general expenditure within one year $ ,4,054,235

Page 17



DocuSign Envelope ID; 08FF2B56-61BC-4O40-9FD0-67F261C6CO9B

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liquidity Mamgeinent

The United Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabililies, and other obligations come due. To help manage imanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additionally, the United
Way has board designated net assets without donor restrictions that, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could be made available for current
operations, if necessary.

Note 12. Pension Fund

The United Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the 15-month period
ended June 30,2020 the United Way contributed $123,621 to employees participating in the plan.

Note 13. Lease Commitments

During a prior year, the United Way,entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New Hampshire.
The lease required monthly payments of $3,337 through August 31, 2018 and increases 3% annually on each
anniversary date of the lease thereafter.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $5,905 through June 30, 2019 and increases by 3% annually on each
anniversary date of the lease thereafter.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on September 1, 2018 through August 31,2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $1,760 through August 31,2020. After August 31,2020, the rent will
increase each year depending on the consumer price index. The lease requires payments for common costs.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two year term
commencing on January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020 for an office space in Berlin, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $187 through December 31, 2020. The lease continues on a month to
month basis after December 31,2020.

Total rent expense for these leases amounted to approximately $173,000 for the 15-month period ended June
30,2020.

The United Way leases multiple copier machines under the terms of operating lease agreements. The
monthly lease payments amouiit to approximately $2,100. The lease expense amounted to approximately
$31,000 for these leases for the 15-month period ended June 30,2020.

Page 28



DocuSign Envelope ID: 08FF2B56-61BC-4D40-9FD0-67F261C6CD9B

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending Tune. 30

2021 , $ 161,561
2022 42,633

2023 34,155

2024 3,520

Total $ 241,869

Note 14. Commitments

In Pl}anouth, the United Way rents space in a building which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1,500 per month. For the 15-
month period ended June 30,2020, the rental income amounted to $103,758.

I

Note 15. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The United Way pays dues to United Way of Worldwide. The United Way's dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $132,477 for the 15-month period ended June 30,2020.

Note 16. COVID -19 and the Paycheck Protection Program Loan

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus {"COVID-19") was reported in China. The World Health
Organization has declared COVID-19 to constitute a "Public Health Emergency of International Concern."
This outbreak has impacted virtually every industry and has created volatility in the stock markets
throughout the world. Many federal and state governments have implemented numerous restrictions,
mandated various closures and quarantine requirements in connection with the COVrD-19 outbreak. The
extent of the impact of the COVID-19 on the United Way's operational and financial performance will
depend on future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and the impact on the
United Way's donors and employees, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.

In April 2020, the United Way received $772,500 in funds from the federal Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP). The PPP is a loan designed to provide a direct incentive for small businesses to keep their workers on
the payroll. SBA will forgive loans if all employees are kept on the payroU for the specified period of time
and the money is used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities. Any amounts not forgiven at the end
of the program period convert into a loan with 1% interest, payable over 2 years.

In the absence of forgiveness, the following is a summary of the future maturities due:

Year Ending Tune 30,
2021 $ 341,904

2022 430,596

Total $ 772,500
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Note 17. Subsecjuent Events

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through November 19, 2020, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. There were
no subsequent events that would require disclosure in financial statements for the 15-month period ended
June 30,2020.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

15-Month Period Ended June 30,2020

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Pass-through

Entity Identifying
Number

Federal

CFDA

Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures

to

Subrecipicnts

Regional Public Health Network Services Ouster

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health EmergeiKy Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements
Public Health Crisis Respoiwe

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Young Adult Leadership Program

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategics
Total State ofN.H. Department of Health and Hwnan Services - South Cenfrni Public Health Nehoork

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements
Public Health Crisis Response

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Immuiuzation Cooperative Agreements

Young Adult Leadership Program

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategics
Total State of N.H. Department of Health and Huiiimt Sendees - Capital Area Public Health Netioork

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Young Adult Leadership Program

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies
Total State of N.H. Department of Health and Hunmn Sendees - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health

Total Regioiial Public Health Netroork Services Ouster

UE. Internal Revenue Ser\nces

Department of the Treasury

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Matching Grant Program

UE. Department of Health and Human Services

State of NJI. Division for Behavioral HcaltK Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
State Opioid Response Grant

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tins schedule.

05-95-92-920510-3380

05-95-90-902510-7545

05-95-90-901010-5362

05-95-92-920510-3395

05-95-92-920510-3395

05-95-92-920510-3395

05-95-92-920510-3395

05.95-90-902S10S178

05-95-92-920510-3395

05-95-92-920510-3395

93.959

93.074

93.354

93.758

93.268

93.243

93.243

93.959

93.074

93.354

93.758

9326S

93.243

93.243

93.959

93.074

93.758

93.268

93.243

93.243

21.009

93.788

154,392

98,599

545

35,199

603

U855

109,786

411,979

137,063

113,268

442

37,592

16,873

13,451

97,430

416,119

146,157

101,013

36,929

14,323

13,296

65,856

377,574

1,205,672

63,089

51Z032

S  1,780,793

133,953

85,653

35,199

12,148

99,605

366,558

12,000

95,424

107,424

394

IZOOO

4,201

16,595

490,577

490,577
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Notel. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way ("the United Way"), under programs of the federal government for the 15-month
period ended June 30, 2020. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Uniform Guidance. Because tlie schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Uruted Way, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the United Way.

Note 2. Basis ofAccounting

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
Uruted Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program
costs. Entire program costs could be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as
applicable, either the cost principles in the 0MB Grcular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs are determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in the accompanying Schedule are determined by the independent auditor to be major programs.

Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes $65,600 claimed as an indirect cost recovery. The Uiiited Way elected to use
the 10-percent de rninimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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o
NATHAN WECHSLER 6 COMPANY
PROFESS ION A T. A S S C 1 A T I O N

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampslure 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the goverrunental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Granite United Way as of and for the 15-month
period ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 19, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Granite United Way's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Way's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Way's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when .the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over fin^cial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite United Way's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompUance with wliich could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entit)''s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord^ New Hampshire
November 19,2020
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Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WJTH THE UNIFORM

GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Granite United
Way's major federal programs for the 15-month period ended June 30, 2020. Granite United Way's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of tlie accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite United Way's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite
United Way's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in tlie circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite United Way's
cornpliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Granite United Way complied, in aU material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the 15-month period ended June 30,2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Managiement of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the tj'pes of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material meakness in internal cojitrol over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such diat there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify aU deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify, any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 19, 2020
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
15-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section I: Summarv of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Is anv noncompliance material to financial statement noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of federal program or cluster

Regional Public Health Network Services
Ouster

93.959 - Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

93.074 - Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Flealth Emergency Preparedness Aligned
Cooperative Agreements

93.354 - Public Health Crisis Response
93.069 - Public Health Emergency Preparedness
93.758 - Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

93.243 - Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

93.268 - Immunization Cooperative Agreements

DoDar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Page 2 7
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

^(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
15-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Section 11 -• Financial Statement Findings

No financial statement findings noted.

Section HI - Federal Awards Findings

No federal awards findings noted.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
15-MONTH PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Audit Finding Rejerence: 2019-001

Status of Prior Finding:
For the year ended March 31, 2019, we reviewed a selection of subredpient expenditures and
reimbursement requests and noted that supporting documentation was not being monitored by Granite
United Way during the first half of the fiscal year. The planned corrective action was completed during the
15-month period ended June 30,2020.
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Ms./Dr. Larissa Baia

Lakes Region

Community College President 379 Belmont Road Laconia, NH 03246

Mr. Joseph Bator. Primary Bank

Executive Vice President & Senior

Lender 207 Route 101 Bedford, NH 03110

Ms. Kathleen

Bizarro-

Thunberg

Secretary &

Audit Choir NH Hosptiai Association Executive Vice President 125 Airport Road Concord, NH O3301

Mr. Joseph Carelli Citizen's Bank President of NH and VT

900 Elm Street NE 1540

Manchester, NH 03101

Mr. Michael Delahanty Salem School District Superintendent 38 Geremonty Drive, Salam, NH 03079

Mr. Douglas DeLara, Jr. Treasurer

Bakerl Newman]

Noyes Senior Audit Manager

650 Eim Street, Suite 302, Manchester, NH

03101

Ms. Patricia Donahue

New Hampshire

Hosuing Finance

Authority Director of Human Resources 32 Constitution Drive, Bedford, NH 03110

Mr. Christopher Emond

Boys & Girls Club of

Central New Hampsire Executive Director 876 No. Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246

Ms. Marlene Hammond

Lincoln Financial

Group Underwriting Account Executive

One Granite Place, P.O. Box 515,

Concord, NH 03301

Mr John Hughes

McLane, Middleton

Law Firm Attorney

900 Elm Street, Floor 10, Manchester, NH

03101

Ms. Diana Johnson

Merrimack County

Savings Bank Public Relations Officer PO Box 2826 Concord NH 03032

Mr. Joseph Kenney

Merrimack

County Cl

Chair The Provident Bank Vice President Commercial Lending 115 So. River Road, Bedford, NH 03110

Ms. Sally .. Kraft

Granite CIC

Chair

Dartmouth Hitchcock

Medical Center

Vice President, Community Health,

Population Health Management Div.

(Chief Officers) 46 Centerra Parkway, Lebanon, NH 03766

Ms. Christina Lachance

University of New

Hampshire

Director of New Hampshire's Council

for Thriving Children

55 College Rd, Pettee Hall, Durham, NH

03824

Mr./Dr. Charles - Lloyd

Northern NH

O Chair

White Moutains

Community President 2020 Riverside Drive, Berlin, NH 03570
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Mr. Lawrence Major, Jr Pike Industries, Inc. Director of Government Relations 3 Eastgate Park Road , Belmont, NH 03307

Ms. Carolyn Maloney Hypertherm Treasurer P.O. Box 5010, Hanover, NH 03755

Mr Joseph Purington Vice Chair Eversource Energy

Vice President of NH Electric Field

Operations

780 No. Commercial Street, Manchester,

NH 03101

Ms. Elizabeth Rattigan

Upper Volley

Cl Chair Downs Rachlin Martin Attorney 67 Etna Road, Lebanon, NH 03766

Mr. Peter Rayno Enterprise Bank

Executive Vice President/NH Banking

& Lending Director 130 Main Street, Salem, NH 03079

Ms. Betsey Rhynhart Concord Hospital Vice President of Population Health 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

Mr. William Sherry Granite United Way Chief Operating Officer 22 Concord Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Mr. Justin Slattery Belknap EDC Executive Director 383 S. Main St., Laconia, NH 032^6

Mr. Timothy Soucy Catholic Medical Center

Executive Director of Community

Health & Mission

100 McGregor Street, Manchester,NH

03102

Mr. Tony Speller

Immidiate

Past Chair Comcast

Senior Vice President, Engineering

and Technical Operations

676 Island Pond Road, Manchester, NH

03109

Ms. Charia Stevens

Vice Choir

/Gov. Chair

McLane, Middleton

law Firm Attorney

900 Elm Street, Floor 10, Manchester, NH

03101

Mr. Robert Tourigny

NeighborWorks

Southern NH Executive Director

801 Elm Street, 2nd Floor Manchester, NH

03101

Mr. Patrick Tufts Granite United Way President & CEO

22 Concord St, Floor 2 Manchester, NH

03101

Mr. Michael Wagner Dartmouth College Chief Financial Officer

7 Lebanon Street, Suite 302 Hanover, NH

03755

Ms. Catherine Walker

Central

Region CIC

Chair

Concord Hospital

Laconia Director of Human Resources 80 Highland Street, Laconia, NH 03246
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SHANNON SWETT BRESAW, MSW

EDUCATION

Master ofSocial Work
2002 - 2004 University of New Hampshire

Bachelor ofArts - Clinical Counseling Psychology

1999 - 2002 Keene State College

Durham, NH

Keene, NH

EXPERIENCE

2007 - Present

Vice President ofPublic Health

Granite United Way Concord, NH

Accomplishments:

Provides Program Director support for the NH Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace
initiative through program development, staff oversight, resource development,
marketing/communications, and evaluation

Works to align and leverage Granite United Way investments and strategies with other
statewide efforts to address public health,.addiction, and social determinants of health

Provides content expertise and consultation in the areas of substance use disorders,
public health, community development, contract management, grant writing, reporting,
and evaluation

Develops and maintains strategic partnerships and relationships with key stakeholders
across NH

Provides contract management and oversight to 3 out of the 13 Regional Public Health
Networks in NH, including the Capital Area Public Health Network, the Carroll County
Coalition for Public Health and the South Central Public Health Network

Provides direction and leadership towards achievement of each Network's philosophy,
mission, strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service
delivery, financial management, and community/public relations

Coordinates all aspects of federal, state, and local grants and contracts, including resource
development/grant-writing, financial oversight and reporting

Develops community health improvement plans, evaluation plans, and other data-driven,
research-informed strategic plans for the Networks

Works with community impact committees and volunteers through Granite
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2005 — 2007 ° Community Response (CoRe) Coalition Belknap County, NH

Outreach Coordinator, Project Director

Accomplishments:

•  Provided leadership for a county-wide, regional alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse
prevention coalition

•  Strengthened capacity of coalition through outreach and collaboration, including partnerships
with 10' community sectors, including government, schools, businesses, healthcare, and
safety

•  Coordinated all aspects of federal, state, and local grants, including financial oversight,
progress reports, communications, and work plan goals, objectives, and activities

•  Developed, coordinated, promoted, and implemented events, programs, and trainings for
youth and adults

•  Strengthened youth leadership and involvement in substance abuse prevention activities

•  Supervised part-time staff, youth leaders, and volunteers

2004-2005 Caring Community Network of the Twin Rivers (CCNTR) Franklin, NH

Community Program Specialist

Accomplishments:

• Assisted in development of programming related to strengthening the public health
infrastructure

•  Recruited new participants to agency committees and projects

•  Facilitated organizational collaboration, compiled research, and developed proposals to
funding sources to address community needs

•  Facilitated several ongoing committees

• Developed and maintained productive relationships with community and state leaders and
agencies

'• Participated in several trainings/seminars related to issues including substance abuse
prevention, emergency preparedness, leadership, and public health infrastructure
development

• Wrote numerous articles and press releases concerning community and public health

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
> American Public Health Association: NH Affiliate Representative to the Governing

Council 2018-Current

> NH Public Health Association: Board Member 2018-Current

> Prevention Task Force of the Governor's Commission (Co-Chair): 2017-Currenl

> NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018

> NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Committee (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018

> NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association: Treasurer 2007-2011,

2014-2015

> NH Prevention Certification Board's Peer Review Committee: 2009-2011
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

.

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Shannon Bresaw VP of Public Health $111,000 40% $44,400

TBD SCR Project Director $75,000 50% $37,500
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Lori A. SblMnettc

Cemnlsstoner

K«tjaS.Foz
Dirrclor

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9544 1.S00-8S2.334S Ext 9544

Ftx:603-27M332 TDD Acms: I-600-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

February 10, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend an existing Sole Source contract with Granite United Way (Vendor
#160015-8001). Concord, NH to continue providing substance use disorder information and call
referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH, statewide, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $247,156 from $1,100,000 to $1,347,156 and by extending the
completion date from September 29, 2020 to September 29. 2021 effective retroactive to
September 30, 2020 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 31, 2016, (Item
#17) and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6, 2020,'(ltem #36).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are anticipated
to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances betw^n state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and
justified.

05-95-92-020510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT '

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Currant

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $378,400 ${192,138) $186,262

2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057040 $600,000 $(158,305) $441,695

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

The Dtpartment of Health and Human Sovicea'Mission is to join communiiiet and familiea
in prouiding opporiuniiies for ciUtens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable CouncQ

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057047 $0 $121,600 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057048 $0 $317,333 $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Sen/ices

92057048

$0 $158,666 $158,666

(
Total $1,100,000 $247,156 1,347,168

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because there could not be a lapse in services to clients.
Additionally, sufficient funds In State Fiscal Year 2021 were not available In the operating budget
considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the Substance Abuse end Mental
Health ̂ rvlces Administration (SAMHSA) In approving New Hampshire's requests for continued
State Opioid Response Grant funding the efforts to add the state appropriations were deferred.

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. The
Department utilizes 2-l'1 NH as its public-facing system to access Information and service
referrals for substance use disorder services.

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH. a telephonic service that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

Approximately 30,000 individuals will be served from September 30, 2020 through
September 29, 2021.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to current resources in their community and, when appropriate, directly connected to
an on-cal) clinician associated with Doorways services.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. Call center services have been enhanced to include assistance
with locating transportation for eligible clients; providing assistance for clients who are in need of
emergency shelter, and utilizing a respite shelter voucher policy for Doorway clients and their
families.

'  The Department will continue monitoring contracted services using the following
performance measures:

•  The percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call.

•  The average amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.

•  The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

•  The average amount of time for the call to be answered.
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His Excellency.-Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

^

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory deiivery of services, avaifabie
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders may not have a phone number to call to initiate asking for help, which
could result In potential delays in their access to care.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788. FAIN TI081685 and FAIN TI083326.

(n the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr.. Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Access: 1.800-735-2964

vvww.nh.gov/doil

Denis Goulcl

Commissioner

February 3, 2021

Lori A. Shibincttc, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
Siatcof New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

\

Dear Commissioner Shibincttc;

This letter represents formar notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to retroactively amend an existing Sole Source contract with Granite
United Way of, Concord, NH as described below and referenced as Doll No. 2019-053B.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-1-1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for individuals and their families statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is 5247,156, increasing the current contract from
$1,100,000 to $1,347,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2021,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2020. This amendment shall become
effective retroactive to September 30, 2020 upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29, 2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulct

DC/kaf

DolT #2015-0538

RID: N/A

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2 to the Call Center (211) Contract

This 2'^ Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract (hereinafter refeired to as "Amendment #2") is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Granite United Way, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 22 Concord Street, 2'*' Floor, Manchester. NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31,2018, (Item #17), as amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #36), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,347,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3. to
read;

2.3. The Contractor shall coordinate social marketing campaigns. Including but not limited to

the Doorway public messaging campaign, that promote 2-1-1 NH with existing networks

that include, but are not limited to the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 3, State Opiold Response (SOR)

Grant Standards, to read:

3.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with the

Doorways, compliant with all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

3.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department with verifying that client referrals to the

Doorways have been completed by the Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30 days

of the contract effective date.

3.4. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract

effective date to review contract implementation.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans

associated with SOR-funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30) days

of contract effective date, unless the Department approves an alternative timeline at the

request of the vendor.

3.5.1. If services are unable to be offered within the required timeframe, thejC^ractor
Granite United Way Amendment #2 Contractor Initialsl

SS-2019-BOAS-04-CALLC-01-A02 Page 1 ol5 Oa" 2/3/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for approval to
outline anticipated service start dates.

3.5.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contract
effective date.

3.5.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply

with all appropriate DHHS, State of NH, SAMHSA, and other Federal terms,

conditions, and requirement.

3.5.4. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be
used, directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or

treatment using marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

3.5.4.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use

disorder (OUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any Individual who or

organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes
of treating substance use or mental disorders.

3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and
memorandums of understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

3.5.4.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.'

3.5.4.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the

Department within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3.5.5.' The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit C for grant terms and conditions including,

but not limited to:

3.5.5.1. Invoicing:

3.5.5.2. Funding restrictions; and

3.5.5.3. Billing

5. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 5. Reporting, by adding Subsection
5.2 to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
SAMHSA.

6. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 6. Performance Measures by adding
Subsection 6.4 to read:

6.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Reduce the total SFY 2019 budget amount by $192,138, which is identified as unspent funding of
which $121,600 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement i©fo8FY21

pf
Granite United Way Amendment #2 , Contractor Initials I
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(September 30, 2020 through December 31. 2020). as specified in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2
NOE; and of which $70,538 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY
21 (January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021) as speciTted, in part, in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2
SORII.

9; Modify Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 Budget (SFY20). by reducing the total budget amount by
$158,305, which is identified as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities
in this Agreement for SFY21 (January 1, 2021 through June 30. 2021) as specified, in part, in
Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2 SOR II.

10. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2 NOE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #2 SOR II, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

pt
Granite United Way Amendment U2 Contractor Initials
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective September 29, 2020, upon Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/4/2021

Date
G

OMuU^ntd by:

cciapcmMMVia,

Name:

Title: Director

Granite United Way

2/3/2021

Date

-OecujJgnbd by:
(

fabrijc. tWh

Title: president

Granite United Way

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A02

Amendment U2
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The preceding Amendmenl. having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Docuaone^ by:

2/12/2021

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
' Title:

Granite United Way Amendment #2
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices Administration, CFDA #93788. FAIN H79TI081685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,; CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR
200.330.

2.2.The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or or payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:'

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCQ.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensyreithe invoice is

Grar^to Unlled Way Exhibit B Amendment ff2 Contractor Initials
27372021
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order'to Initiate payment. Invoices shall
be net any other reyenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of thi^ agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract,

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.,

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees. - ..

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the
FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

'  5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

GranKe United Way Exhibit B Amendment tt2 Contractor initials
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an (electronic signature and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SCR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. the Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #1 Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A Amendment #1,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and'adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

Grsniie United Way Exhibit B Amendment P7 Conlreclor initials
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b. pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and

Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an'amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be-
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed • by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood arid agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception.

Granite United Way Exhlt>it B Amendment tt2 Contractor Initiais
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/m/D/V FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 FLEASAhfT STREET. COrCORO. NH 03)01
<0M7t.95a 1400432^3343 Ell. 9S44

Fei: 603-27I-4332 TDD Accm: t400>733-2964 >aww.4hb>.nb4ov

db
/

March 24. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health end Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing sole source agreementwith Granite United Way (Vendor #160015-8001#)
22 Concord Street. Second Floor. Manchester. NH 03105. to provide substance use disorder
Information and call referral .services through 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by Increasing the price
limitation by $100,000 from $1,000,000 to $1,100,000. wrth ho change to the contract completion
date of September 29. 2020. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
October 31. 2018 (Item #17).

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years
2020 and 2021 with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation, and adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES,
STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Class/ .

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
flDodified

Budget

2019
102-

500731

Co.ntracts for
Prog Svc

92057040 $500,000 ($121,600) $378,400

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 $500,000 $100,000 $600,000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
82057040 SO $121,600 $121,600

Total $1,000,000 - $1001000 $1,100,000
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EXPLANATION

The original contract is sole aourco because the Oepartmenl utilizes 2-1-1 NH as Its
public-facing system to access Information and service referrals for substance use disorder
services.

The purpose of this request is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH, a telephonic service that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals ar>d their families statewide.

This request, If approved, will enhance current services by:

•  Providing emergency transportation and emergency sheltering options Jto
Doorway clients when It Is deemed that no other options for these services exist.

• Adding a Community Liaison Specialist (40% FTE) to connect individuals to
supportive services related to SUD in their region.

• Providing funds to purchase "closed loop referral* software.

Approximately 10.000 individuals will be served from May 6. 2020 through September
29. 2020.

Granite United Way assists clients with Identifying service .needs and provides referrals
to Doorways and other human services providers; The Contractor also participates in quality

. monitoring and improvement activities to ensure services provided meet Department standards.
Individuals who call 2-T-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder senrice

.access are referred to current resources In their cornmunity and, when appropriate, directly
connected to an on-call clinician associated with the State's newly created Doorways services.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty.-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. As marketing and outreach for State Opioid Response
initiatives inaeases. the Department anticipates more capacity for 2-1-1 NH services will be
needed to address Increased call volume, especially as additional housing services become
available. If this request is approved, 2-1-1 NH call center services will be enhanced, to include
assistance with locating transportation for eligible clients; providing assistance for clients who
are in need of emergency shelter; and working with the Department to develop a respite shelter
voucher policy for Doorway clients and their families.

The above outlined approach Is part of the Stale's accepted proposal to the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SOR)
grant opportunity. With this funding opportunity, the Department is using evidence-based
methods to expand treatment, recovery and prevention services for individuals with opioid use
disorder in New Hampshire.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the contract.and the delivery of sen/ices
using the following performanoe measures:

• The percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call.
•  The average amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.
• The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Accms: 1-600-735-2964

. www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Couitt

Commissioner

April 3, 2020

Lori A. Shibiricuc, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinctte:

This letter represents formal notiHcoiion that the Department of Infonnotion Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a "sole source contract amendment with Granite United
Way, (Vendor# 202684-8001) of Manchester, New Hampshire 03105 as described below and referenced
asDolTNo. 2019-053A.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and rcferral services through the 2.|.| NH statewide telephonic service. The.
call center services tvill be enhanced to include assistance with locating transportation for
eligible clients, providing assistance for clients who arc in need of emergency shelter, and
working with DHHS (0 develop a respite shelter voucher policy for Doonvay clients and
their families.

This amendment will increase the contract amount by $100,000 from $1,000,000 to
$1,100,000, with 00 change to the contract completion date, and shall become effective
upon the date of Governor and E.vecuiive Council approval through September 29, 2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Dcnis.Goulet

DG/ik

DolT#20l9-053A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
C8llCer»tcr(2i1)

State of New Hjmpshifo
Ocpartmeni of Hcetih and Human Senrlcoe

Amendment #1 10 the Call Center (211) Contract

This V Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract (hereinancr referrod to as ™ ̂
and between the State of New Hampshire, DcpartmenI of Health and Human
referred to as the "State" or "Oepartmenf) and GranHe'United, Way., (hereinafter refcmod ^
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 22 Concord Street. 2nd Floor. Manchester NH 03105.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an ogroement (the •'ContiacT) approved by the Ooveniof ar>d Evecutfve C^cil
on October 31.2018. (Item 017). the Contractor agreed to pcrfofm ocrtaln services based upon terms
and conditions'specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specrfiod; and
WHER^S. the State end the Contraclor have agreed to make changes to the scope of wortt. payment
schedules of larms end conditions of the contract; end

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may ̂  amended
upon wrrtten agreement of the parlies and opprowal from the Governor and Executive Council, arid
WHEREAS, the parttaa agree to increase the price limitation end modify the scope of wn/ices to support
continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and condKlons of the Contract and prior amendments nol inconsistent with this
Amendment 01 remain In fuD force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE. In isonskJeratlcn of the foregoing and the mutual cover>arttB and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth hercin. the parties hereto agree to amend as follosvs:

1. Form P.37. General Provisions. Block 1.6, Price Ltmltallon. to read;
$1,100,000.

2. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services In Us entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope
of Services.

3. Add ExhibH B-1 Amendment 01.

A. Add Exhibit B-2 Amendment 01.

The roU of this page left m/enfionaf/y blank.

Qfanits Uniod Woy

S&>201 a-BDAS^MK^LlC-AOI

Amonenenl B1

P»94 t of 3

Contractor Inhbt*.

Dote.
7,
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New Hampshire Deperiment of Health and Human Services
Cell Center (211)

This amendmcnl shall be effeclivfl upon the dale of Governor and Executive Council approval.'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have aet their hands as of the date written t>^ow.

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Healih and Human Services.

•olt)

Date Name; Katja S. Fox
Title; Director

■yj.n (z.c^a
Date

Granrta Unt^Way

jifO
Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

Stale nf ^tjhJ County of . on'3?iiv/x/' before the ■ -
undersigned offlc^ personally appeared the person^dentlfled directly eboVo. or MUsfactorlly proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and ecknowtedgod thai s/he executed this documonl "m the
capacity indicaied above.

Signature of Notary Pu&nc or Justica of the Peace

t'idk I^^aJ d
Name and Title of l^ta^ or Justice of the Peace'

Uy rnrnmUtinn EgpireSI/^X..-*—
'4
c

KffmiEENAeCANION
f  - Now Rsmpihke

ft(y Comaaslon Exptm Juro X4« 2020

UpiMWsy

SS-ZOia-BOASOS-CALLC

Amerdntnt (Tt

PD0e7ol3
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New Hampshlro Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

The preceding AmerKJnenl. having been reviewed by lhl» office, ta approved as (o tom». eobstence. and
executioiv

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■tie
Date

I heroby certify that the foregoing Ameridmenl wai approved by the Goverrw end Execolive Courxi) of
the Stale of New Hampshire, at the Meeting on; • of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Nemo;
.Title:

Grvniu UflibOWBy

SS-ZOia-BOAS-M-CALlC

Amendmon 91

Foge) ol 3

C  r.^ I!
•  . * • n
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services '
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons swith limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the.

Services described herein, (he State Agency has the right to modify Sen/ice priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

t.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after September 30. 2020. and (he Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after September 30, 2020, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds

encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SPY 2022-2023 blennia.

1.A. Por the purposes of this contract. Granite United Way shall be identiiled as a
subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. ef seq.

>

2: Scope of Work
2.1. .The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder information and referral services

through 2-1-1 NH statewide. Sen/ices shall Include, but not be limited to;

2.1.1. Ensuring all calls received are answered by a properly .trained Information and
Referral specialist according to training requirements in Subsection 4.2.

2.1.2. Providing confidential and multilingual services twenty-tour (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying Information and service needs related to the caller's substance use

disorder or the substance use disorder of a family member, significqnt other, friend,
or concerned party.

2.1.4. Assessing callers for additional needs and providing appropriate resources based
on eligibility including, but not limited to:

2.1.4.1. Housing

2.1.4.2. Mental health services

2.1.4.3. Social supports

2.1.5. Contacting emergency services, depending on the nature of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller, including, but not limited to:

GfBrtie Uni)efl W»y Exhibit A rvnendmenixr Contn»dd» Irillels,

SS.201SeDAS-O*^ALLC.A0l Oal«
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,2.1.5.1. Directing callere to 911 if a client is in Imminent danger or there is an
emergency.

. 2.1.5.2. If the ciient is unable or unwilling to cali 911. the Contractor shall contact
emergency-services.

2.1.6. Assisting clients who are solety seeking referral information to appropriate
treatment and other resources in the client's service area,

2.1.7. Directly transferring clients who have a non-emergency need and are seeking
assistance with accessing treatmeni services to the Department's Regional
Doorways for substance use disorder sen/Ices (Doorways), based on the client's
location, when appropriate.-

2.2. The Contractor shall update its referral resource database weekly for substance use
disorder (SUD) services and other human and social services that aid in individuals irt
achieving and maintaining recovery.

2.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to'SUD and health and human
service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update-dala as
appropriate.

2.3. The Contractor shall coordinate social martteling campaigns with existing networks to
promote 2-1-1 NH including, but not limited to. the Doorway public messaging,
campaign. Existing networks Include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Integrated Delivery Networks (IDNs)

2.3.2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

2.4. The Contractor shall participate In all quality compliance, monitoring, and improvement
activities requested by the Department which will include, but is not limited to:

2.4.1. Demonstrated compliance with guidelines from the Alliance of Information and
Referral Systems (AIRS) for quality control and evaluation.

2.4.2. Participation in electronic and In-person call record reviews.

2 A.Z. Participation In site visits.

2.5. The Contractor shall participate in training and technical assistance activities as
directed by the Department.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder edvahced Information and
referral services during the hours of 5 pm through 8 am to elevate an individual's •
transportation and shelter crisis, when no other payer source Is available, by:

2.6.1. Providing transportation to and from recovery-related medical appoi.ntmenls.
treatment programs, and other locations as Ideniiried and-recommended, by

.  Doorway professional staff to assist the eligible client with recovery:

2.6.2. Providing emergency shelter to assist individuals in need of respite shelter w^ile
awaiting treatment and recovery services. The Contractor shall:

Gr»nHe UnJlod Way A Ameodmarn f 1 Cootfctof lnl>iai> _,i .
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2.6.2.1. Collaborate with the Department on a respite shelter voucher policy and
related procedures to determine eligibility for respite shelter vouchers
based on criteria that Include but are not limited to confirming an. individual

Is:

2.6.2.1.1. A Doorway client/family:

2.6.2.1.2. In need of respite shelter while awaiting treatment and recovery
services: and

•  2.6.2..1.3. In .need of obtaining financial assistance to access short-term,
temporary shelter.

2.6.3. Complying with all the other activities outlined in Exhibit A

2.6.4. Purchasing software, subject to review and approval by the Department-thai will
allow the Contractor to communicate and share personal client information with
the Department's Doorways contractors- arxl the Department's' afterhours
Doonways contractor in order to coordinate transportation and emergency shelter
services.' The software shall include, but is not limited to:

2.6.4.1. . A method to confirm that each referral to a Doorways contractor is received

and acknowledged.

2.6.4.2. A method to ensure that notice is returned to the initiating party for each
received referral.

2.6.4.3. Conndenliality of client personal identifiable information

2.6.5. Hiring additional staff equivalent to a minimum of .5 PTEs

2.6.6. Training staff on advance information and referral sen.'ices, which must include,
but is not limited to:

•2.6.6.1. New processes and procedures for receiving and responding to these calls

2.6.6.2.' Receiving, collecting and ensuring secure use" and protection of personal
identifiable information and any confidential information, including 42CRF
Part 2. and personal health iriformalion.

2.6.6.3. Using new software

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with

the Doorways, compliant with all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part
2.

3.2. Tf)e Contractor shall assist the Department with verifying that client referrals to the
Doorways have been completed bythe Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR-funded activities to ensure services are in place within thift^30)

Granbft United Way Exhibll A Amendment HI Conlractor Iniliels

SS.20t9-BDAS'O4-CA'LLC>AOl P«B#3oi5 Dale
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days of contract effective date, unless the Department approves an alternative timeline
at the-request of the vendor.

3.3.1. If services are unable to l)e offered within the required limeframe. the Cohtrador
shall submit an updated implementation plan to the.Department for approval to
outline anticipated service start dates.

3.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate unspent
funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contract effective date.

%, Staffing

4.1. The Contractor shall submit a staffing and recruitment plan to the Department within
(7) seven days of contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all call-center staff are properly trained in how to
assist individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties; Training topics

shall include, but not be limited to

4.2.1. Addiction 101.

4.2.2. Eliminating stigma.

'  4.2.3. Safe language practices.

4.2.4. Safeguarding the confidentiality and lawful re-disclosure of client/caller substance

use disorder and other confidential information.

4.2.5. Other topics identified by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of (1) one full-time staff person to update the
Contractor's database weekly for SUD services and other human and social services

that aid in individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery.

4.3.1. The Contractor shallconduct ongoing outreach to SUD and health'and human
service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update data as
appropriate.

5. Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide de-identified, aggregate monthly web based reports by

the 20'" of the month following the reporting month. The reports shall include, but not
be limited to:

5.1.1. Number of phone calls received relative to SUD, including the average numljer of
calls each month.

5.1.2. Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of callers referred from the call center line to Doorways.

5.1.4. Number of callers directly transferred to Doorways.

5.1.5. Number of callers referred from the call center line to non-Doorway servi^i

Gnnita Untied W»y Exhibll A Aniondmeni #1 Coftitaaot initials
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5. V6. Number of callers referred from Ihe call cenier line to non-SUD services.

5.1.7. Average amount of time callers wail-in call queues before an agent responds.
5.1.8. Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

5.1.9. Average amount of lime it takes lor the call to be answered.
5.1.10. Average amount of time an agent spends speaking with the caller. Including hold

time.

5.1.11. Percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

5.1.12.-Call center caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional).

5.1.13. Caller demographics and information when available including, but not limited to.
5.1.13.1. Substance of choice.

5.1.13.2. Housing issues,

5.1.1,3.3. CriminaUuslice issues.

•  5.1.13.4. Employment issues.

5.1.14. Caller location.

5.1.15. Emergency/Imminent Risk Involvement/Level of Urgency.

5.1.16. Services sought.

5.1.17. Outcome of each phone call including, but not limited to:

5.1.17.1. Referrals to Doorway for services and clinical evaluation.

5.1.17.2. Information and resources provided via the phone.

6. Performance Measures
61. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of individuals in need of substance use services

who remain on the phone during the transfer of the call are directly transferred to their
Regional Doorway.

.6.2. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of individuals who call 2-M NH for SUD
service information or referral will speak to a 2-M staff member on the first call.

6.3. The Contractor shall gather baseline data from January 1.2019 - September 30. 2019
on the areas listed below.

6.3.1. The percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

6.3.2. The average amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.

6.3.3. The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

6.3.4. The average amount of lime it takes for the call to be answered.

GmnhBUAlledWoy EihlWt A WneflcJmeni «l Conlraclof lnillJ!>_—^
• o«.3lnZl^SS-20IB-BOAS-04-CAaCVS0t P«9l5of5
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state of new Hampshire

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU Of DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

IDS PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
003-37I-6I10 l-80O-SS2O343ei(.6738

Fes: 603-27i-01p5 TOO Accni: I-800-73S-3PM .
'  wwtv.dhht.nh.gev

n  :

October 10, 2016'

K)

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu..
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into a sole source egreemenl with Granite United Way.
Vendor #160015-80011*,'22 Concord Street. Second Floor. Manchester, New Hampshire 03105, in an
amount not to exceed $1,000,000, to provide substance use disorder Information and call referral
services through 2>1-VNHitatewid6, effective upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
through 2020.

Funds are available in the following accounifs) for State Fiscal Vear (SFY) 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability arid continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budgets, with.authority to adjust amounts within the price limllalion and adjust
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through the'Budget Office If needed and justined. without
approval from Governor and Executive Council. ^
05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number . Total Amouril

SFY 2019 102-500731 Conlracls for Prog.Svc TBD- $500,000

SFY 2020 102-.500731 Contracls for Prog Svc TBD ■ $500,000

Total $1,000,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Department is seeking to utilize 2-1-1 NH to
restructure its public-facing system for access to information and service referrals for substance use
disorder services. Presently, the Department funds a separate 1-800 number for addiction holline calls
and the Department Is seeking to re-align (his'service Information and access into a streamlined
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approach, as part of the State Opiokt Response grant. Granite United Way was selected as the sole
source contractor given its current operation of the 2-1'1 NH number for multiple other se^ces. This
streamlined approach will eliminate duplication of having multiple phone numbers, by adjusting and
transferring the scope of the addiction hotline calls into 2-1-1 NH. Additionally, aligning substance use
service, information and access with 2-1-1 allows for the whole person's needs to be met when they
call, given.the multiple resources 2*1*1 has for referrals through other related contracts (e.g: Homeless
and Housirrg, Servicetink, etc.). Individuals who call 2-1-1 seeking information or substance use
disorder service access will be connected to up-to-date resources in their community and when
appropriate, directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with the State's 'newly created'
Regional Hubs for Substance Use Disorder services, to begin addressing their needs:

Funds in this agreement win be used to provide substance use disorder Information and referral
services through 2-1-1 NH statewide, a telephonic service that provides confidential and rriuliilingual
services twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days per week. Granite United Way will assist clients
with identifying service needs and by providing referrals to the Regional Hubs or other human service
providers as a caller's needs are identified. Granite United Wey will also participate in quality
compliance, monitoring, and improvement activities Id ensure that services provided meet Department
standards.

The above outlined approach Is part of'the State's accepted proposal to the Substance Abuse
and Menial Heallh Services Administratiori (SAMHSA) State Opiold Response (SOR) grant opportunity.
With this funding-opportunity. New Hampshire wll) use'evidence-based methods to expand treatment,
recovery and prevention sernces to individuals with OUD in NH. and the use of 2-1-1 NH as the public-
facing phone number for services is critical to the Department's plan.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years', contingent upon satlsfadory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no .services shall continue
after June 30. 2019, and the Oe'pailmenl shall no! be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30. 2019, unless and until additional Federal resources are allocated for this purpose and an
appropriation for these services has been received from the stale legislature and furKls encumbered for
the SFY 2020-2021.

Should Governor and Executive Council rx3t authorize (his Request, individuals in NH will have
limited Information about where to seek information or services for substance use disorder end have
potential delays in access to care.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Admlnislralion. CFDA #93.788 FAIN #H79TI061685.

In the event (hat the Federal Funds become no longer availabie, General Funds, will not be
requested to support (his prograrn.
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RespecKully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved b
AlJfrey A. ffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77i« Deporlnient o! Heali/i and Hiiman Struiet$' Mittion {$ to join coniffiKiin'ri ond fonulict
in pfomtlingopporUiniUitfortiliseiit to oc'n'fvc litolUi o»«ri uutetKndtnci.
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FORM NUMBER f-V <vinlw SWIS)

WatiM: T3di ipamcfll intf «t1 of lb lUtbmcnu iKiD bccofM public upon isbmlulofl to Oovemw ind
&tcNilv< Council for tppravt). Any Inromitfon Out h prtvui, wofUendtl or proprkury mot)
b* tioAy Uentlfied to (M tccncy tfld atrctd to h writlei prior to tl&nlot Um ceninct.

ACRetMEMT

Th« Sui« of Now HutpiMn Md lb* Ceametor htrvby motually opm ai foltowo:

CENCRAL PROVISIONS

I. IDtPmPICATIDW.
1.1 Suua Ayracy Nirat
NH Dtp«1/neat ofKcAltb tnd HumkA Scrvleci

1.3 SttuAitncyAedrtii
l3PPI(uaAtStrc«i

Con(oid.NH03]010S$7

ConotctorNtmt

Crtnlto United Way

1.4 CoDtfsstor Addtttj

23 Ciwterd Street, 2nd Floor
POBoxlll

MaacbourNHOlIM

I J Conncior Pboru'
Nvmbrr

601-d2>dl9]

1.6 AceotmlNvmbcr . ̂
6S«»S-5a:«ej'M?0y{I

BKS: 0HH>-4Mm»TW.

I0]-5e07)l

1.7 Cooipkilon Dtta

9/39/2030

1.1 Pries Umluitea

Si.OOO.OOO

1.10 Stu« Agency Tclepltona Nonbcr
603-271 M3I

1.9 Contne>lntCfneerlorSiit>A|tncy
NilhuO. WMia

Obveiorol' CofltrocD and Procvrcmeni

not1.11 1.13'fcdiraa and Till* of-Coniroctor Slimoiy

1.13 AcltBOvltdEtincrrt: Smeof /7w County Of

before (ha undinl{n«d officer, pcnoftsllyappcvtdiha pcnon Ideotlffed fo block 1.12. or mUfooerlly
pnvcn (0 ba*w pcnon w)»w ruma 1$ ilcwd Is block I. II, ind ocknowlcdttd ikal tfoa cxeceied (hit documeat io (be capactry
If^dlcated In bloek 1.12,

1.13.1 Si|Cttior«orKoUryPoblleo/ltt)ile«ofUKPc*e4

JSsil

MTNLON/U fiCdMAN
Aotuy PubUo • Ifow Kinipr^

%Commluto>bpbe$^24,2(720

1.13.2 Ntmaend Tltla of Notary or luideeofihc Peua

A ScA'^Ut^
1.14 Suia Aiency SlpcrurewSlncTure

Date:

{ l.tJWimeandTltle^orSttiaAflefKySlfintloiy ^l.tJWimeand Tltle'orSttia AgerKy Slgntloiy

wjTI.Id Ap^nl b/(ra N>t. Df^tunenlof AdffllnlrtreiJon, Z>M}\»oi9aiantiW0Jepfikebh}

By; Director, On;

1.17 Approvel by (he Aitemey Ocncral (Fonn. SubilaACeond Reunion) P/appltcchlt)

By: fbjf y-J/ff
1.11 Approvel by the Oovrmor and Baecuilwa Covacti (!/opptMU)

By: On;
'  V

Pogc I of4
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Subject: Cell n\\\ fSS.2019.BDAS4M.CAi.Ln
FORM NUMBER P07(version S/8/IS)

Noike: Thisegrecmcnt end ill of its enacbmcnti shell become public upon submission lo Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is piSvaie, eonndeniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the bontrKl.

agreement
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Oepanmeni ofHealth and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address 'y
129 Pteasam Street

Concord. NH0330IOI37

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite United Way
1.4 Contractor Addrcu

22 Concord Sireel, 2nd Floor'

POBo.x2ll

M8nchesierNH03l05'

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-621 ̂ $93

1.6 Account Nuijtbcr

BHS: 05-95-42-423010-7928.

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

9/29/2020

1.8 Price Limitation

SI.000,000

1.9 Contracting OfTlcer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Oirectorof Contracts and Procurement

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271.9631

I.M Signature ^ / 1.12 ityne and Title of Contractor Signatory

I.I3/Acknowledgement: State of /Yftf County of

On , before the undersigned officer, personiilly appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or saiisfaciorily
proven to be the person, whose name is signed inblock.l.ll,and acknowledged that s^c executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

I.I 3.1 Sigjtatura of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
,  ' /r ^ MnfttEHA-SCAKUW

»*ComtitbilonEa^^2^020
• 1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary Of Justice of the Peace

A Scfif^/o r/ v,yi/A-?44^
I.M ' Slate Agency Signature l.l5(.A^ame and .Titleof St^ic Agency Signatory . ^

1.16 Approval by tfle N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Pcrton?bU(7/opp//ro6fe,j

By: Director, On: < -

1.17 Approval by the Anorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) Of opplieoblt)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council oppf/cobJe^

By: On;

• Page 1 of 4
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, STATE OF NW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax; 6a3-27l0516 TDD Acccjj: 1-aOO-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Oeni) Gould

Co/nfnistiofttr

October 16, 2018

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers;

This letter represents formal noiiftcation thai the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sqle| source contract with Granite United Way, (Vendor
H 202684-8001) of Manchester, New Hampshire 03105 as described below and referenced as DolT No.
2019-053.

This contract will provide support for the transition of the current Addiction Hotline
number and ongoing operations of a 24/7 call center through 2-1-I NH, to ensure that
individuals seeking inforrnalion or help with substance use disorder have access to
information and service referral.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $ j ,000,000 and shall become effective upon
the date of Governor and E.sccutive Council Bfjprovaj through September 29,2020.

A copy of this lencr should accompany the Oeparrmcnl of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and E.xccuiive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

OG/ik/ck

DolTfi20l9-053

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

Denis Goulei

'Ifinovothe Technohgiei Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow
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2. EMPtOVMCNT pF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PCRFORMCD. the Suie ofNew Hampshire, aain^
ihrou^ the agency ideniincd in block I. I ("Siaie"), engages
contractor identiried in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to pierform.
and the Coniractor-ihall perrorm, the work or tale of goods, or
both, tdcniified ond more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incbrportued herein by reference
("Services");

3. EFFECTIVE OATE/COMPLETlON OF SERVICES.

3.1 Norwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to (he approval ofihe Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agrecmeni, and ell obligeiioni of (he parties
hereunder, shall become elTectivc on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
. block 1.18, unleas no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
l.ld ("EfTettive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Semces prior lothe
EfTeciive Dole, oil Services performed by (he Contractor prior
to the EfTcciive-Daic shell be pcrrormcd at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that (his Agreement does not
become cITcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the
Controcior, including without limilotion, any obligation to pay
■the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Controcior must complete oil Services by the Completion Date
specified in block r.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, end in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction orierminaiion of
appropriated funds, (he State shall have the right to.withhold
payment until such furtds become available, if ever, and shall
have (he right to terminate (his Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate '
Shall not be required lo (rinsfcr funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price; method of payment, and terms of
payment ore identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State of (he contract price shall be the
only ond the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, ond shall be the only and the complete
compensation to (he Conbactor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves (he right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise poyable to the Contractor under (his Agrecmeni
(hose liquidated amounts required or pcrmined;by N.H. RSa

' S0:7 through RSA 80:7>c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circurnsiances, in
no event sKill the total of a!) payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 in connection with (he performance of (he Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with ail statutes, laws, regulations,
and ordcn of federal, slate, county or municipal fiulhorlltes
which impose any obligation or duty upon (he'Coniracior,
including, but rtoi limited 10, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement (O utilize Auxiiiaiy
aids and services (0 ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive infor^tion from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, (he Contractor
shall comply with all applicoble copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
ofTinTtaiivc aciion to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If (his Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Slates, the Conuicior shall comply with ell (he-
provisions ofExccutiveOrder-No. 11246("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by (he
regulations of (he United States Oepanmem of Labor (41
C.F.R. Fan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or ihe United States issue to
implement (hese regulations. The Contractor funher agrees lO
permit ihe State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for ihe purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules,'regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms end conditions of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide el)
personnel necessary to perform (he Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified lo perform the Services, mtd shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all opplicable
laws.
7.2 Unless oiherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Coniractor shall not hire,
(usd shall not permit any lubconlroctor or other person, firm or

' corporation with svhom it is engaged in a combined efTon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is-mBierially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of4
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Agreement. Thii provision shell survive lerminfttionofthis
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or hit'or
her tucceisor. shell betheStete'srepresenteiive. In the event
ofeny dispute corKtming the inierpirlsiion oTthls Agreement,
the Conireciing OfTicer'sdeciston shell be flnel for the Stele.'

6. CVeNTOF OCFAULTTRCMCDIES.
1.1 Any one or more of the following ecu or omissions of the
Contractor shall consiiruie an event of default, hereunder
("Event of Default',');
8.1.1 feilure to perform the Services seiisfociorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event.of Default, the State
may take any one. or more, or el), of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in ihe
abicncc of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the daie of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminbte this Agreement, effective two
(2) days oRer giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give ihe Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be'made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the .contreci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Comracior during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
dctermifKS (hat the Coniracior has* cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may Owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Defoult; oj>(l/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in cquiry, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDEffTlADTYf

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, Including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, leners, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any properly which has been received from ■
(he State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason..
9.3 Conndeniialiiy ofdoia shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disctosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early temtination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Servietrs. (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than nneen (15) days after the date of .
termination, o report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and Ihe contract price earned, to
and including (he dale of termination. The form; subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be idcniica) to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11.CChrTRACTOR'SRELATlONTOTHESTATC. In

.the performance of (his Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of (he State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTiccn, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, woricen' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to iu employees.

12. assicnment/oelecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen notice end
conscni of (he State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by (he Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its offlcen and
employees, from and againsi'ony and all losses sufferad by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against (he State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions ofthe
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of (he

sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity Is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant In paragraph 13 shiJI
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain In force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

'  14.1.i comprehensive general liability insurance agoinsi all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S I.OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering oil
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in on amount not ■'
less than 80% of the whole replacement value ofthe property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.) herein shall "
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpirtmcnt of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shell Turaish to the Contracting OfTtccr
tdcniificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, b cersiric8le(s)
of insurance for oil insurance rtquirtd under this Agraemcni.
Contractor shfill ftlso furnish to. the Coniixcting OfTiccr
Identified in blxk 1.9. or his or her successor, ceniricalc(s) of
insurance for ill renewBl(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) tJays prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cenificBteis) of
insurvKC end any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
irKOfporaied herein by rafcrtncc. Each ceniAcatefs) of
insurance shall contain • clause raquiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1,9, or his
or her tucccisor. rto less than ihirry (30) days prior wrincn -
notice of cancellaiion or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
I S.I By signing this agreefflcni, the Contractor agrees,
cenifies and werranu that the Contractor >i in compliance with
or exempt from, the rtquiremenu of N.H. RSA.chapler 28 i -A
("WorUrt' Compensation ").
15.2 To the. extent the Contractor is subject to the.
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 261-A, Contractor shall
msiniain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payrnent of Workers' Compensation in
conrteciion with activities which the person proposes to
undertake p.ursuani to this Agreement. Contrecior shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chspier 281 - A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and ere
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or bencDi for Contracioi, or
any subconirpctor 0» employee of Contractor,- which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'

- Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by'the State to
enforce any provisions hereof aflcr arty Event of Default shall
be deerned a waiver of its rights with regard to thai Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event pf Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each tind all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the ̂ dresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only af\er approval of such
amcndmeni, waiver or discharge by the Governor artd
Executive Council of the State of NewHampjhir* unless no

such approval is required under ihe circumstances pursuant to
State law, luk or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance svith the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, end is binding upon and
inures to the benefit oflhe parties and their respective
strccetsors and assigns. The wording used in this Agracmem
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, ai^ no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics end this Agree'ment shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit. . .

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrctmcm
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way ̂  held to explain, modify, aniplify or
aid in (he interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiiona! provisions set
fonh in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVCRaBILITV. in the event any oflhe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to wy state or federal law, the rtmaininc
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be exccuted-in a number of counieipans, each of which shall
be deemed an originak'consiitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding beiweei> the parties, and supersedes ell prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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Call Center (211) ■

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Corttractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they wlll provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor egrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the Stale Agency has ttie.right to modify Service priorllies
end expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compllarKe
therewith.

■ 1.3. Notsviihstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrery. no services -shall

continue after.June 30. 2019. and the Department, shall not be liable for any
-  payments for services provided after June 30, 2019. unless and until an

appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and

funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SPY 2022-2023 bicnnia.

1.4. ' The State has applied for the Slate Opioid Response Grant (Tl-10-015) and will
continue to perform due diligence in the appl'icdllon- process. However, the Stale
makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the.State be

liable for costs incurred or payment,of any services performed by the Contractor prior
to the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the Stale Opioid Response Grant

■  (TI-18-015.

1.5. For the purposes of this contract, Granite Un'tted Way shall be identified as e

subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0: et seq.

2. Scope of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder information and referral

services through 2-1-1 NH statewide. Services shall include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring a!) calls received are answered by a properly trained Information and

Referral specialist according to training requirements in Subsection 4.2.

2.1.2. Providing confidential and multilingual services'twenty-four (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying information and service needs related to the caller's substance use

disorder or the substance use disorder of a family member, significant other,

friend, or concerned party.

2.1.4. Assessing callers for additional needs and providing appropriate resources

based on eligibility Including, but not limited to:

2.1.4.1. Housing

GrinlieUn<ie4W»Y E;d^A C«nirMor lnUs:s

SS-20)e-80AS-04-CALt.C P«0« 10l 5 04l«
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2.1.4.2. Mental health services

2.1.4.3. Social supports

2.1.5. Contacting emergency services, depending on the nature of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller, including, but not limited to;

2.1.5.1. Directing callers to 911 If a client is in imminent danger or there is an
emergency.

2.1.5.2. If the client is unable or unwllting to call 911. the Contractor shall contact

erhergency services.

2.1.6. Assisting clients who ere solely seeking referral Information to appropriate
treatment and other resources in the client's service area. . ,

2.1.7. Oirectty transferring clients who have a non-emergency need and are seeking
assistance with accessing treatment services to the Department's Regional Hubs
for substance use disorder services (Hubs), based on the client's location, when

appropriate.

2.-2. Prior to initiating senrices, the Contractor shall collaborate with (he Department to
establish a plan for Iriaglng calls from 2-1-1 NH to the Hubs. The plan must.be

approved by the Department no later than October 31. 2018. The plan shall include,

but not be limited to:

2.2.1. - Identification of best practices.

2.2.2. Protocols and procedures for the call triage system.

2.2.3. A process for bi-directional Information sharing of updated referral resource

databases to ensure that each entl^ has rec'entty updated referral information.

2.3. The Coniractor shall have agreements with all Hubs for bi-directional communication
and coordination of 'services no later than January 1. 2019.

2.4. The Contractor'shall update Its referral resource database weekly for substance use

disorder (SLID) services and other human and social services (hat aid in individuals

In achieving and maintaining recovery.

2.4.'1. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to ..SUD end health/human

service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update data as
appropriate.

2.5. The.Contractor shall coordinate social marketing campaigns with existing networks
to promote 2-1-1 NH including, but not limited to. the Anyone, Anytime campaign.

Existing networks include, but are not linrxted to:

2.5.1. Integrated Delivery Networks (IDNs)

2.5.2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

Grtrile Urlte4 Way E^RXl A ConliACtor InUgh

SS-ZOtS-BDAS^M-CALlC Paj»2ol5 Oata 2^"/^
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2.6. The Contractor shall parlidpate in all quality compliance, monitoring, and
Improvement activities requested-by the Department which wii) Inctude. but is not
limited to:

2.6.1. Demonstrated compliance with guidelines from the Alliance ot Information and
Referral Systems (AIRS) for quality control and evaluation. - '

2.6.2. Participation in electronic and in-person call record reviews.

2.6.2.1. Caller satisfaction surveys, which will t>e developed in collaboration with
end approver^ by the Department for evaluelion use beginning In July
2019.

2.6.3. Participationinsitevisits.

2.7. The Contractor shall participate in training and technical assistance activities es
directed by the Department.

3. State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The 'Contractor shall establish formei information sharing and referral agreements

with the Hubs, compliant vrith all applicable conndentiality laws,.including 42 CFR

Part 2.. , ' .

3.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department wHh verifying that client referrals to the
Hubs have been corripleted by the Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation

plans associated with SOR-funded activities to ensure services are in place within
thirty (30) days of contract effective date, unless the Department approves an
alternative timeline at the request ol the vendor.

3.3.1. If senrices are unable to be offered within the required timeframe, the Contractor

shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for approval to.

outline arMicipated service start dates.

3.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the' contract end liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contract'

effective date.

4. Staffing

4>1. The Contractor shall submit a staffing and recruitment plan to Ihe Oepartment within

(7) seven days of contract effective date.

4.2.- The Contractor shall ensure that ell call center staff are properly trained In how to
assist Individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties. Training topics

shall include, but not be limited to ' .

4.2.1. AddictionlOI.

4.2.2. Eliminating Stigma. ^

Gftrtie Urtie<) Wjy EanWlA Conindof intairt
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4.2.3. Safe language practices.

4.2.4. Other topics identified by the Department.

4.3. The Cofitractor shall provide a minimum of (1) one full-time staff person to update
the Contractor's database weekly for SUD services and other human and social
services that aid in individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery.

4.3.1. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to SUD and health and human
service providers lo erasure feat-time accuracy of resources and update data as
appropriate.

5. Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide de-identified, aggregate monthly web based reports by,

the 20"^ of the month following.the reporting month. The reports shall include, but not .
be limited to; '

5.1.1. Number of phone calls received relative to SUD. including the average number of
calls each month.

5.1.2. Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of callers referred from the call center line to Hubs.

. 5.1.4. . Number of callers directly transferred to Hubs.

5.1.5. Number of callers referred from the call center line to non-Hub services,

5.1.6. Number of callers referred from the call center line to non-SUO services.

5.1.7. Average amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.

5.1.8. Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an-ageni.

5.1.9. Average amount of time It lakes for the call to be answered.

5.1.10. Average amount of lime an agent spends speaking with the caller. Including hold-
lime.

5.1.11. Percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

5.1..12. Call center caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional),

5.1.13. Caller demographics and infomiation when available including, but not limited to:

■  5.1.13.1. Substance of choice.

5.1.13.2. Housing issues. , .

• '5.1.13,3. CrIminalJusticeIssues. '

5.1.13.4. Employment Issues.

5.1.14. Caller location. • '

5.1.15. Emergency/Imminent Risk lnvolvementA.evel of Urgency.

GrtrtreUrtredWay fctfiftliA Controciof Iniitoij
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5.1.16. Services sought.

5.1.17. Outcome of each phone call including, but not limited to;

5.1.17.1. Referrals to Hub for services end clinical evaluation.

5.1.17.2. infomndtion ar>d resources provided via the phone.

6. Performance Measures
6.1. The Gonlractor shall ensure that 100% of Indlvlduats in need of substance use

services who remain on the phone during the transfer of the .cal) are directly
transferred to their Regional Hub .

6.2. ■ The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of individuals who call 2-1-1 NH for SUO

service information or referral will speak to a 2-1-1 staff member on the Tirsl call.

6.0. The Contractor shall gather baseline data from January 1, 2019 - September 30.
2019 on the areas listed below. Performance measures regarding these areas will
be negotiated with^the Contractor by October 30. 2019.

6.3.1. The percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

6.3.2. The average amount of lime callers wait in call queues before ari agent
responds.

6.3.3. The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

6.3.4. The average amount of time it takes for'lhe call lo be answered.

Ofoiuia Uitied Way C/nrwi a Com/tctoi initJtit

SS-201 &-eOA$-04-CAH.C P«90 5 ol 5 Ooto
Rev.04/24'18



DocuSign Envelope ID: 08FF2B56-61BC-4D40-9FD0-67F261C6CD9B

DocuSign Envelope ID: E1C100E1-04E4-4F7C-98FE-57E439B33F1B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
'Ce1ICenter(211)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The Slate ehall pay the Contractor en amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block t.8. Price LimitBtion for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This Agreement is.funded with funds from the Substance Abuse end frontal Health Senrlces'
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, CFOA 093.786. Federal Award Identlficallon Number
(FAIN). H79Tl0ai6aS.

1.2. . The Cdniractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Foiiure to meet (he scope of services may jeopordizo the funded Contractor's current
end/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly es follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement bas.is'for actual expenditures incurred In the futfiliment of
this Agreemeni, end shell be i^eccorda^ce with the approved fine item In Exhibit B*1 end Exhibit 8-2.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred in the prior
month. The invoice must t)e completed, signed, dated and returned lo the Oepartment in order to
Initiate payment. The Contractor agrees lo keep records of Iheir actlNnties related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. The Slate shall moke poyment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submined invoice end (f sufficient funds ere evaiiabie! The Contractor will
keep detailed records of.lheir octlviiies related to OHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the Stale no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form p.37.
Block 1.7 Compietion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned on electronic signature and emailed to
Abbv.Shocklevfadhhs.nh.dov.

2.6. Payments may bo withhold ponding receipt ol required reports or documonlation as identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services ar>d in this Exhibit 6.

3) Notwilhsianding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P<37, changes limiled lo adjusling amounts between
budget line items, relat^ Kerns, amendments of related bu^et exhibits within the-price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrences between State Fiscal Yeers. may be made by written agreement of both parties end
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

GrtrOe UrXied Wty Exhibli 6 Contractor inUati,
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligalions; The Contractor covenants ar>d agrees that all funds received by (he Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only at payment to the ConirBcior (or eervices provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covanents. the Contractor hereby covenanis and
agrees as tottows;

1. Compliance with Fodorol and State Lewe: if the Contractor 1$ permitted (o determine the eligibility
of Mividuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable (Merat end
fitato laws, regulations, orders, guideilnes, policies and procedures.

2. Time end Mennor of Determination: Eligibility determinations ehoU be mode on forms provided by
the Oepartment'for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Oepartrhent.

3. Documentation; In addition to (he determination forms required by the DepartnKnt, the Contractor
shall maintain a data nie on each recipient of services hereunder. which Tite shall include all
information rtacessary to support an eligibility datermlnatlon and such cthor information as'tha
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms end documentation-
regarding eligibility determinations thai ihe Oepariment may request or require.

4. Foir Hoarlnge: The Contractor understands that ell applicants for services hereunder, as well as
.individuals declared ineligibto have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contr^or hereby covenants and agrees that aO applicants.for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form end that each applicani or ro-epplicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordanco with DepaAment rogulalions.

5. Gratultleo or KIckbaclts; The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
moke a payment, groluhy or offer of ompioymeni on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
Ihe Slate in order to inftuancd the performance of (he Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
ConlrBcl. The State may tormlnote this Contract and any sub-contract or.sub-egreemenl if It Is
determined (hat payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
eny offidals. officers, employees or agents of Ihe Contractor or Sub-Controctor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstending anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in eny
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wit! be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs irKurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Irtdivldual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the

'  federal regulations) prior to a determination thai the indrviduai is eligible for such services. •

7. Conditions of Purchsso: Notwithsiandirtg anything to (he contrary contained in tho Contract, nothing
herein contained shall ba deemed to obligalo or require the Department to purchase services
hereurvdcr at o rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of Ihe Contractors costs, at o rate
which exceeds the'amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contreclor to ineligibte individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at eny tirne during the term of ih'is Contrect or after receipt of the Finat
Expenditure Report heraunder, the Oepariment shall determina that Ihe Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
<n excess of such costs or in excess of such rolos charged by the Contractor to ir^eligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Oepariment may elect to:
7.1. Renegctiato the rates forpaymeni hereunder. in which event new rales shall be established;.
7.2. Deduct from any future payment lo the Conlraclor the amount of eny prior reimbursement In

excess of costs: ^
ExNbU C - special Pfowlalont Conuedomvilai}
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7.3. Oemond repoymenl of the exceae.payment by the Contractor In which ove/tt failuro to make
euch repaymeni ahall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of indivtduals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for aD funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individuai who Is found by the Department to be inetigibie for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records estabfished herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUOlT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. hflalntenance of Recorda; in addition to the eiigibiiiiy records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and ogreas to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records; books, records, documents end other data evidencing end reflecting all costs

and other expanses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or codecied by the Conimctor during the Contract Period, said records to be
mainlined in accordance with accounting procedures ertd practices which sutficlanlly and
property reflect ell such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the .Departmanl. and
to include, wilhoul limilation. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase reouisitlons end orders, vouchers, raguisitlons for materials, inveniories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

■ 8.2. Sietistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include ell recces of application and
eiigibiiiiy (including ell forms required to delermine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services end aD invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment (or such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Depanment regulations, the
Contredor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6. Audit: Contractor shall submit en annual audit lo the Department within 60 days after the'close of (he
agency fiscal year, tl is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates. Locol Governments. end.Non
Profit Organizations" and Ihe provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.

. Programs.'Aclivillas end Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain lo financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of IhisContrBCt and the period for retention hereunder. Ihe

Oeparfmenl, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shell have access to ell reports and records rhaintained pursuant to
the. Cdniract for purposes of audit. exomiAslion. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to orvl nol in ony way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. II is
understood and ogrood by tho Cor^traclor lhat the Contractor shall be held liable for ony 'state.
Of federal audit exceptions end shall return to Ihe Department, ell payments made undor the
Contract to which exception has been taken or wh'ich have been.disallowed because of ouch an
exception.

10. Confldantlallty of Records: All Information, reports. er>d records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with (ho performance of the services and the Conlract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by (he Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and (he regulations of
(he Department regarding the use and disclosure of such infonmation. disclosure may be made lo
public officials requiring such informotlon in ccnnoction with their offlclal duties and for iourposes
directly connected to the administration of the services end the Contract: and provided further, thai
the use or disclosure by any party of any Infonmation concerr^ing a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of (he Department or the Contractor's responslbililles with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on wrinen consent of (he r^pienl. his
attorney or guardian.

CxNM C - Sdcdst PnMslons Contredor inltleb.
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Notwithstanding enything to the contrary contained herein (he covenent's ortd conditions contelned in
the Peregreph shall survive the termlnelton of (he Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Ftscel and Sietistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at (he following
times if requested by the Oepartmertt.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports; Written inlerim financial reports containing a detailed description of

en costs arxl rtorr-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of (he report end
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the OepartmenI to
justify the rete.of poyment heroundor. Such Financial Reports shaii-be submineo on the form
designated by the Oepertmeni or deemsd satisfactory by the Oepartment.

11.2. Final Report; A rmai report shsij be submitted within thirty (30) deys efler (he ertd of the term
of (his Coniiect. The FinsI Report shell be in o form sBiisfactory to the Depertment ertd shall
contain a summary stetement of progress toward goats end objectives stated in the Proposal
end other information required by (he Oepartment.

12. Completion of Services: Oisailowdnce of Costs: Upon (he purchase by (ha Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contrect and upon payment of the price limitetion
hereunder, the Contract end all the obligdlions of the parties hereunder (except such obligations os.
by the terms of the Contract are to be pertormed after the end of the term of this Contrect end/or
sunrive (ho termination of (he Contract) shell terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of (he
Final Expenditure Report the Oepartment shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Corttrector es
costs hereunder the Oepartment shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the omount of ouch '
expenses es ere diselldwed or to recover such sums from the Cqnlrector.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of Ihe Contract shall include the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under'e Contract with the State
'  of New Hempshlre, Department of Healh and Human Services, with funds provided in part

by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were aveilable or
required, e.g.. the United States Dopertmeni of Health and Human Son/ices.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerehip; AO materials (wrihen. video, eudio) produced or
purchased under the contrect shall have prior approval from OHMS before printing.-production,

-  distn'bation or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any end all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contrector shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities:.Compliance with Laws end Reguiatlone; in the operation of any fociiitias
for providing services, the Contractor shell comply wilh ell laws, orders end reguletions of federal,
stale, county end municipal authorities and with eny direction of any Public OfTicer or ofTicers
pursuant to laws which shed Impose en order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services ei such focllity. if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contrector will procure said license or permit, and will al ell limes compty with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connoclion wilh the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants end egrees that, during the term of this Contract the feciliiies shell
comply svith all rules; orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal end
(he local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building end zoning codes, by-
lows and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), rf it hos
received a single award of SSOO.OQO or more. If ihe recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or

ExNMlC-SpeclJiPrDsi'jlofU Conuactof iniiltb
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more employees, it will mainialn a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Cetlrficallon Form to the
OCR. ceitifyir^ thet'lts EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less then $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the eward. the recipient wilt provide en
EEOP Certiflcetion Form to the OCR certifying h is not required to submit or maintain on EEOP, Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, end medicaiend educetionai institutions ore exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to tbe OCR to claim (he exemption.
EEOP CertiTicelton Forrns ere available at: hnp;r/www.ojp.usdo^ab(Ml/ocr/pdfs/ccr1.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): AsclarlSed by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, end resulting agency guldence, nationol origin
discrimination includes discrimination on iho basis of limited English pronctency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control erd Safe Siraels Act of 1666 end Title VI of the CiwI
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must taXe reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful eccess to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whiatlebiowor ProtoctionD; The
following shall apply to all-contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currenlly. $150,000) •

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
WHiSTLEeLOWER Rights (SEP 2013).

(e) Thb contrect end employees wording on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at .
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorlzxition Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
.112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shell inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the worftforce.
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.$.C. .4712, as described in section,
3.908 of the.Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shell insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts ovar the simplified acqutsit'ion ihreshdd.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end occouniabtlity for the func(ion{s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontiector's ability to perform the delegated
function{s). This Is eccomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor end provides for revoXing the delegation or imposing sanctions K
the subcontractor's performance is not odequate. Subconlractois are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contraclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with (lioae conditions. ^
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, (he Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ebilily to perform the actrvilies,-before delogating

the function

19.2. Have a.written agreem'eni.with the subcontractor that specifies activities ertd reporting
responsibilities end how sariclions/revocelion will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor (he subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

Etfilbll C - SiMdsl Provbloni Controclor Inhlsb
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19.4. Provide to OKHS en ennual schedule kientityihg etl subMntractors. delegated functions end
responsibilHiai. end v^en the subcooiractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall. 81 its discretion, review end opprove ell subcontracts.

If the Corttrsdof identiTios dertciencios or areas for improvement ere IdentiTied. (he Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Conlracl, the following terms shei) have the foUowino meanings:

COSTS; Shall moan those direct and indirect items'of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursabto in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state end federal laws, regulations, rules and aders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL r^NAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor f/anusi which Is
entitled "Financial Management Culdermes" end which contains the regulations governing the rmancial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; ff appticable. shan mean the documont aubmltted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by.the Department and containing a doscrtption of Ihe SerN^es to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contmct end setting forth
the totet cost end sources of revenue for each, service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Conirector Is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean that -
period of time or that specified octlvity determir>^ by the Department and specified in Exhibii B of the
Contract.

FEOERAiySTATE LAW: -Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. ore
referred to in Ihe Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amertded or revised from the time.lo lime.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean thai document prepared by the NH Department of Administraliv©
Services'conteining a compilation of all regulations promulgaled pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch S4t -A. (or the purpose of implemenling State of NH end
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds ovailoble for these eervices.

CxNDtl C - SxcU> Ffovtolons ConUsclor InlUob
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subperagraph 4 of the General Provisions oi this contract. Conditionat Nature of Agreement, is
replaced es follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
'  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreenienl to the contrary, aii obligations of the State

-  hereunder. including without limctation. the continuance of paymente. in whole or in pad.
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.

"Including any subsequent changes to Iho eppropriation or eveiiabilrty of funds effected by
any slate or federel legblatlva or executive action thai reduces, eliminates, or otherv/lsa
rTKXfines the eppropriallon or evcilabiity of fundlr>g for this Agreement and the Scope of

.Services provided In ExhlOlt A, Scope of Services. In whole or In pod. in no event shall the
Stele be lieble for eny payments hereunder in excess of epproprialed or available funds. In
(he event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, (he
Stale shaD have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
Siaie shall have.the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under (his Agreement
immedlatety upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The Slate shall not be required to trensfer funds from any other source or account into ihe
Accouni(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
accountjn the event funds are r^uced or unavailable.

2. Subparegraph 10 of Ihe General Provisions of this contract. Termination. Is amerided by adding the
following language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
(he State,' 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that ihe State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early terminat'cn. (he Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eady
termination, develop end submii to the State a Transition Plan lor services urider the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present end future nee.ds of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully coopcrole whh (he State and shall promptly provide detailed
inlormation to support the Transition Plan including; bul not I'lmited to. eny Information or
data requested by the Slate related to the tepnirxation of the Agreement and Transition Plan
end shall provide ongoing communicetion end revisions of the Transition Plan to (he State as
requested. '

10.4 In Ihe event that services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or Ihe State, the Controctor shell provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of nolrfying clients end other effected individuals
about the transition. The Contraclor shall tnclude the proposed communications in its
Transilion Plan submitted to tho Stale OS described above.

3. ■ Renewal:
The Department reserves Ihe right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional yoora.
coritingenl upon salisfaclory delivery of services, available funding, agraomont of the parties end
approval of the Governor and Executive Council. ' ' .

EzNWl OI - RsvlsJcni <0 Standerd Provisions Comrscior inQtais.iC
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREI>1ENTS

The Contreclof Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections Sl51-5160of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title-V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Generel Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US OEPARTf«ENT OF HEALTH AND HUfl^AN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS '
US DEPARTMENT OF eOUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections S1S1-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Sublitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The Jenuery 31.
1889 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691}, and require certification by grantees (and by inrerer>ce, sub-grantees end sub^
conlraclors). prior to award, that they vrill matnlain e drug-free workplace, Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that o grontoo (end by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificQtes for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, -The certificate set out below is a
meterial representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grent. False

. certification or violation of the certrficalion shall bo grounds for suspension of payments, suspienslon or
termination of grants, or government v^de suspension or debarmenl. Contrectore using this form should
send It lo:

Commissioner

fJH Department of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide e drug-free wotltplBce by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a ccnlrotled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. Thedangers of drug abuse in.lho workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, er>d employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penatties that may be impossd upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making U a requiremeni that each employee to be engaged In the performance of tha grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the siatemenl required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the etatement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviclion;

1.5. Notifying the ogency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subperegreph 1.4.2 from orj employe© or otherwise receiving ocluol notice of such conviclion.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nolice, including position title, to every gr'enl
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federel agency

ExhlWlD-CenWMtlonroaanJlnBOnjgFrM ConUoaof
Workplace Requt'errnnii
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has dcslgAaied a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice ehati Ir^iude the
ident^ication number{8] of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of ihe (oD^ng actions, wllhin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taklng.af^ropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

tarminelion, consistent with the requiremenis of the Rehebilitatiofl Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requl/ing euch emptoyee to partcipaie satisfactorily in a drug abuse ossislanco or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by e Federal, Stete, or local heatth.
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making e good follh efforl to continue to mointein a drug-free workplecethrough
Implementetio/t of paraoraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3.1.4.1.5. ertd 1.6.

2. The grantee mey Inseil In the apace provided below the site(s) for the performartce of work done In
connection with the apecific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If (here ore workplaces on nie that are not idenlified here.

Contrector Name:

16-/r- ,
Date Name: yr^^./eyf\

EjtfywiO-CMiScifoofeoirolnoOiugFftte Conuedor imuih
WoApiscsRequtrcmcflls
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Thd Cqnimctor Identiflod in Section 1.3 of (ho General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
■ Section 319 of Public Lew 101-121, Government wide Guidance for Now Restrictions on Lobbying, ond'
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Conirsctor's representative, as Identrfied in Sections i.li
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Ceriificalioh:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF eOUCATlON-CONTRACTORS _ - .
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered}:
lemporary Asslstanca to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under THte IV>0
*Soclel Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Trite XIX
'Community .Services Block Grant under Title Vi
'Child Cere Development Block Grant under Title fV

The undersigned certifies, to thp best of his or hor knowtodge end belief, thai:

1. No Federel eppropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on bohall of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an ofTicer or employae of any agency, e Menfiber
of Congress, on officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of o Member of Congress in ■
connection with the owarding of ony Federal contract, continueiion. renewal, amendment, or
modificolion of eny Federal contract, granl, loan, or cooperative egreenvent (end by specific mention
sub^rantee Of sub-contractor).

2. If eny funds olher then Federal appropriated funds heve been paid or will be peid to eny person for
.  influencing or ettampling to'influence en officer or employeo.of any agency, e Member of Congress,

an officer or employee of Congress, or en emptoyee of a Member of Congress in connection with Ihls
Federal contracl. grent, loan, or cooperative agreement <and by specific mention sut^-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard-Form LLL. (Oisciosure Form to
Report Lobb)ring. in ecco/dance with its instruclbns. attached and tdenlified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shell require that the language of Ihls certification be included in the award
.  document for sul>-awardt el ell tiers (including subconuacls. sub-grants, and contracts urvjer grants,

loans, and cooperative agreements) and that sil sub-rocipierits shell certify and disclose accordingly.

This certrficBtion is o maleriel represeniation of fact upon which reliance was placed'when this transaction
was rnede or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisH'e (or making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Secllon 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fells to file the required
ceftrf^lion shol) be subject to a civil penally of not less than 510,000 and not more than 5100.000 (or
each'euch (allure.

Conlreclor Name:

Date ame

TlUe:

EiJiian e -Certbcsoon RsganSng Lceoying ConirBaorirfii«ii ^J
cu»»anio»o Popiioti "Osis
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CERTiPiCATlON REQARDINQ OEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Geneml Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President; Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
represenlalKre. as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By Bigr>ing end submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below. '

2. The tnabBity of a person to provide the certificetbn required below will no1 rtecessar^y result in denial
of-participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, ihe prospeclrve participant shall submit an
explanation of why H canrtot provide the certificetion. The certification or explariation wID be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Heeith and Human Services' (OKHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary,
participeni to furnish a certification or en' explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was pieced
when OHHS dotormined to enter Into this trensection. If it is later determined'that the prospective
primary part'rcipanl l^nowingly rendered en erroneous certiflcalion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemmeni, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any lime Ihe prospective primary participeni learns
that hs certrficatibn was erroneous when.submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. .

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred,' 'suspended.* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,' 'person.* 'primary covered trensaclion,*'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded.* as used ir> this clause, have the meanings set out in the Oefinitions end
Coverage sections of the rules impiemenling Executive Order'12S49: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definKions.

6. The prospect'rve primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. il shall not knowingly enter into any tower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or volunterily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, uriless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it^will include (he
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension. In'etigibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covorod Transactions.* provided by DHHS, without modiflcat'ion, in all lower tier covered
transactions end in all .solicitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, irveligible, or invotuntarily excluded
from the covered Iransectior). unless it knows that ihe certificatior^ is erroneous. A partidpanl mey
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of oxcluded parties).'

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require esleblishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the'certffication required by (his clause. The knowledge and

C>^R)R F - CentflcsUon RegnSing'Osbarment. Susptmton Contrsctor imuis.
And Otner fl«iporijlb!Uiy Mineri
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informatibn of a participant la not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
parson in the ordinary course of business dealings.

to. Except for transactions authorized urxler paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant In a-
covered transaction knowlf>gly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, tn
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may lerrninate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVEREO TRAN^CTIONS
11. The prospective primary pertlcipsnt certifies to the best of Hs knowtodgo and belief, thet it end its

principals: ''

11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntertly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:

.11.2. have nol wilhin a three^year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offertse in
connection with obteining. ettempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Slate or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, ihaR, forgery, bribery, falslficelion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;-

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise cnmlneliy of civilly charged by e governmental enlliy'
(Federal. Slete or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumereted in paragraph (i)(b)
of (his certification; end

11.4. have not within a Ihree-year period preceding this epplicetion/proppssl hed one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slete or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the stetements in this
certificalion. such prospective participant shaD attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS '
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier perticipanl. as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to Ihe best of its knowledge and belief thel II end its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, decleied ̂ eligible, or

voluntertly excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or ager>cy.
13.2. w4iero the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the ebove, such

prospective participant shall anach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier perticipanl further ogrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled *CertifiCBtion Regarding Oobarmerit, Suspension. Ineiiglbility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without m<^iricelion in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations lor lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

6# Name:

Title:

Emtek F - CtnincsUon Re^sr^lns Oebirmem. Siepemlon Conlrsctor IrVllils
And Other ReiponslbtOty Mstteri ■Hciponjiwuty Msneri.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREWEHTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIfdINATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS . "

The Contmctor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiTied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisioris, to execute the following
cenincaiion:

Contieclor will comply, end will require any subgranlees or subcontractors lo comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnaiion requirements, which m'ay Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 37S3d) which prohibits
recipients of federei funding under this statute from discriminating, eiiner in employment practlces'or in
the delivery of services or bertefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origir). ar^ sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• (he Juvenile Justice DelinquerKy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which edo'pts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute ore prohlbiled from discriminating, either In employment praclices or in the deiiveiV of services or
benenis. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Acl includes Equal,
Employment Opportuniiy Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal rmancial
assistance from discriminatirtg on the basis of rece, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal finartcial •
essistanoe from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or adivily;

. the Americans with Disabilities Acl of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportumty for persons with dbabllhies in employment, State end local
government services, public accommodations, commercial fedlitles. and trensporiation;

• the Educalton Amer>dment8 of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-68). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohlblle discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or eclivilies receiving Federal financial assistance. II does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice R^ulaliona - Nondlscriminatlon; Equal EmploymerM Opportunhy; Policies
end Procedures): Executlvo Order No. 13279 (equal prqlection of the lawrt for failh-based and communliy
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and poticy-malring
criteria for partnerships with failh-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Oepdrtmenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Orgenizatioris): end Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 ar>d The National Defense Authorization
Acl (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblowcr Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is e materiel representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed whert the
egerKy awards (he grant. Fatso certification or violation of the certirication shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarmcnl."

£xnibiic
Comractor tniuau.
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in iho event 0 Federal or Stale .court or Federal or Stele edmlnislralive agency makes a ftnding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nalional origin, or eex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to (he Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within (he Department of Hcatlh arid Human Senrices, and
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the OmbudsmBn.

I

The Contractor idenlified in Section -1.3 of the General Provisions agroos by signature of the Contreclor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By eigrMno ond submitting this proposot (contrecl) the Contractor egrees to comply with the provisions
Indiceted above.

Comrector Name:

Dele

X.
G

Comncior (nOlati
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law t03*227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act oM994
(Act), requires thai smoking not be permined in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for ihe provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under, (ha age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not eppty to children's services provided in private residences, facilities furvled solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faclliiies used for inpatient drug or olcohol treatment. Failure
to comply wilh the provisions of the law may result In the impostlton of o civil monetary penetty of up to
SI000 per day end/or Ihe Imposition of en edministretive compliance order on the responsible entily.

The Contractor identlTied In Section 1.3 of the General Provislpns.agreas. by sigr^eture of the'ConUactorlB
representetlye as-identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12of the General Provisions,'to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing end submitting this contract, (he Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. Known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

CofttractorName;

Sate Na

TlUe:

CUOM^Snion)
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heatth Insurance. Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104*191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates'. As defined herein. 'Susiness
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Eniity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services.

|1) Oefinltlona.

e. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach'.in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. . '

c. TCovered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Seclionj64.501.

e. 'Data AaQreoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.- 'Heallh Card Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'heal.lh care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. ■ ■ ■ ■

h- 'HIPAA* means the Heallh Insurance Pohability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104*191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'indlviduar In 4$ CFR Section 180.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFRSeclion164.50l(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

•  Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'prelected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the infoimation created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

V20U EaMWH . CoWMSOl InWili
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I. 'Reouifcd bv Law* shaP have the same meaning as the term 'required bylaw* In45 CFR
Section 164^103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean tbe Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' ahiall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'UnBaeur^d Pfoteetftd HcnKh lf^fofmfl^^en• Mean® protected heelth Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or.lndecipherabie to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 end 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buelneaa Associate Use ar^d Dlaclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shal) not use. disclose, maintain or transrhlt Protected Health
Information (PHI) axdept as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers.-employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I.' For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;'
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. • For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that-such PHI will be held confidentialiy'ar^
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which if was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from.such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, arid Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of-the confidentiality of (he PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief, if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate she!) refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has egreed to
be bound by additional restrtctloris over end at>ov6 those uses or disclosures or security
sefeguerds of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such addKionsI restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Aeeoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health-information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b; The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o Themnauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health informalion.was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete (he risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and.records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere (o the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party benefrciary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcernent ar^d indemnificetior) from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph fill 3 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health informallon.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
8us(rvess Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure -
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance wlthMhe terms of the Agreement.'

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Dosignatad Record
Set. (he Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuinil its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such informaiton as Covered Entity may require to fulfil) its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR .
Section 164.528.

k. In the even! any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, (he Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall "have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy .and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in conneciion with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit fudher uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destnjction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shali certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{5) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices-provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation, may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall prornptly notify Business Associate of any .changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFP Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disdosure-of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to.the extent that such restriction may effect Business Associate's use or disclosure of -
phL

(5) Tefmlnatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the-Agrcement upon Covered ,
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

•  Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violiation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section' as. in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and epplicable federal and state law.

c. , Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that' it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d., Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity-inthe Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule,
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e. Seofeoatlon. If eny lerm or condition of this Exhibit I or (he application thereof to any
p6r8on(8) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition;, to this end (he
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibil t reQsrding the use ond disclosure of PHI. return or
dostfvcllon of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. (he
defense and lr>domnlf]caUon provisions of seciion (3).e and Paragraph 13 of iho
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the AgreemcnI.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies herelo have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepaitment of Heallh and Human Services

arwwf the Contractor AThe State Ns

^  ■ ■
SIgnature-bf Authorized Representative Sfgn^u're of AuthdHz^ Representative

Name bfAuthorlzed Representative Name of Aulhortzed R^esenName of Authorized R^resenJarpe of Authorized tative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Title ol Authorized Representative

Dale

ExNUll
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccouniabilHy and Transparency Act {FFATA] requires prime awardees of individual
Fed^l grants equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded or>'or after October 1,2010, to report on
date related to executive compensation and associated rtrsl*tter aub<grants of S25.000 or more, li ihe
initial award Is below }25.000 but subsequent grant modifications resutt in a total award equal to or over
S25,000. (he award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of (he award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reponing Subaward and Executiva Componselion Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract owerd subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Nsme of entity

2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grerUs
5. Program source.
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of Ihe entity
8. Principle place of perfomnence
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS A)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five exec^ives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Inlormalion is not olready-evalleble through reporting to the SEC.

Prima grant redpianis must submit FFATA required data by the end ol the month, plus 30 doys, in which
(he award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 ot the General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Lew 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Repoiling Subaward and Executive Compensetion (nformetion), and further agreea
to have the Contractor's represontalivo. as identified in Sections 1.11 arid 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertiHcalion;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
DepartmenI of Health and Human Services and to compty with al) applicable provisions of Ihe Federal
Financial Accountability end Transparency Act.

Conlractor Name:

Dale Name;

TlUe:

Etftf&fl J - Cenlflcallon RegBnfing the Federal Funding Contrector (nlileis
AccoirfiiebBity And Tienepe/ency AO (FFATA) Compilencenperenqf ugmpiLence ^ y
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At the Contraclw Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisiont. I certify that the responses to the
botow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or or9ar»izotlon'8 preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgenization
receive {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, end/or cooperative agreements: and (2) 525.000.000 or more in annual
gross'revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subconirocts. loons, grants, subgronls.-and/or
coopyati^ agreemenls?

NO YES

If the answer to U7 above Is NO. slop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the exoculrves In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(e) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of iho internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop hare

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation ol the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization ere as follows:

Name;

Name:

Namo:

Name:

Narr>e:

Amount: _

Amount:.

Amount:.
r

Amount:,

Amount:

E;miWt J - Ce/tlfle4«or> Re9«ftflr>Q Federal Fgnding
AccoonteWliiy And Ttartjparer^cy Ad (FFATA) CompBanco

Peso 2 ol 2

Conlrador InlUal)

Date
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have (he described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauit^rized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164:402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident;
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department'
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data* means all confidential informalion
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medicai, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information Including vrithout limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Informalion and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH.- created, received.from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of -performing contracted
services : of which collection, dlkiosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or'federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Informalion (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives '
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' rheans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated Ihereunder.

' 6. 'Incident' means an act that potentiatly violates an-explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through thefi or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a 'protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be corisidered an open
network end not edequaiely secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFl,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked

-  or linkat>te to a specific Individual, such as date and pjace of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

'  9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHH has the same meaning as provided in (he
definition of'Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information thai is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing* organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to ail its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential .Information in response to. a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first nptifying DHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contrector must be bound by such
edditioriQl restrictions end must not disclose PHI in violation of such eddllional
restrictions end must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or dertvalive there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees' DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant eccess to the data to the authorized representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmilling OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applicelions, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said-
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks end Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmil Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User Is employing the Web to transmit Conftdenllal-
Data, the secure socket layers (SiSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/Ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted end password-protected.

' 8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmil Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an oper> wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communicalion to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must l)e
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also krwwn as Secure File Transfer Protocol, if
ErKf User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidentiai.Oata. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-foWers used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deietion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

-  11. Wireless Devloes. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data 'must te encrypted' to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the date and ar^y derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data .end^any-
derlvaiive in v^atever form 11 may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Conlract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Reienilcn

1. The Contractor agreeS' it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the sen/ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall, also apply in the'Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and iQpludes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact. State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential mformation for contractor provided systems.

. 3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

'  ■ (
5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a

FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems., the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. enti-spam. antl-spyware, and anli-malwara utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detectioh end nrewatl protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infreslructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will rrfainlein any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing-of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery'operations. When no longer in-use, electrortic media containing State of
New Hampshire data' shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program'
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-68, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will documertt and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will prov'ide written'certrficalion to the Departmenl

^ upon request. The written certiftcaiion will include all' details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professiortal standards for retention requirements •will be jointly
evaluated by the Sfate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specined, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy a!) hard copies of ConHdential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless ptherwise specined, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract! Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confideniial Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Informalion throughout the information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless, of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Coniractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controts to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department conridenlial information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor win-provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecllng Departmertt confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
'  supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at. a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Coniractor will work with the Depailment to sign end comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Oepartment system access and authorization policies
end procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 6yst6m(is). Agreements will be
completed and signed-by the Contractor and any applicabte sub-contractors-prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA-Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Depaitmenl and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work With the Oepariment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Deparlmeni and
Contractor to monitor for any changes -in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Oepariment and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Oepartment'data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from 4he Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Coniractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach end minimize any damage or loss resulting from the* breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
cosis associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contrector must, compty wilh all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Informatior^, and must in alt other respects
maintain the privacy and socurity'of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limUed to, provisions of the Privacy Act of' 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52a), DMMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually fdentlfiabfe health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate ddministrative, technical, and
. physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidentlat Oats and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level end
scope of security that.is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Oeparlment of information. Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.90v/doit/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notiftcation and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Oifficer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
conftdential information breach, computer security Incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any Stste of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this '
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract,

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information ai all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHt, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password*protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if enervated and being
sent (0 and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. . [imil disclosure of the Confidential Infomialion to (ha extent permitted by lew.

f. Confidenlia! information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Dale, must be stored in an area that Is
physically 'and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non^duty hours (e.g.. door tocKs. card keys,
biometric Ideniiflers. etc.).

g. onty authorized End Users may transmit the Confidentjal Data, including any
derivative fiies ccnialning personally Identifiable Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as requ'tred in section iV above.

h. in all. other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate 'safeguards, as determined by a risk>based'
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must no! be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Us^rs. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections (o monHor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such tinrte the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security incidents and EIreaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and .Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.P.R. §§ 43t.300 • 306. In addition to. and '
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

^  1.. Identify Inctdenis;
2. Determine If personalty idenlifiable information is involved in Incidents:

3. Report suspects or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

. 4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; end
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5. Oetefmine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify eppropriate
Breach notification methods, timir^g, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated wHh the ̂ each notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents arnl/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSlnformationSecufityOfficeQdhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfrtcer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security Issues;

DHHSInfofinationSecurjtyOfricc@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notincatlons;

'OHHSInformationSecurityOfrice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrlvacy.Officer@dhhs,nh.gov
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